Local Government Act 1972
I Hereby Give You Notice that an Ordinary Meeting of the Durham
County Council will be held in the The Main Hall - Spennymoor Leisure
Centre on Wednesday 14 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m. to transact the
following business:-

1.

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June
2021 (Pages 5 - 18)

2.

To receive any declarations of interest from Members

3.

Chair's Announcements

4.

Leader's Report

5.

Questions from the Public

6.

Petitions

7.

Report from the Cabinet (Pages 19 - 32)

8.

Initial proposals for new Parliamentary Constituency
Boundaries - Report of Corporate Director of Resources
(Pages 33 - 52)

9.

Appointment of Independent Persons to the Standards
Committee - Joint Report of Corporate Director of
Resources and Head of Legal and Democratic Services
(Pages 53 - 62)

10.

Appointments to the Business Durham Advisory Board Joint Report of Corporate Director of Regeneration,
Economy and Growth and Head of Legal and Democratic
Services (Pages 63 - 66)

11.

County Durham Youth Justice Plan 2021 - 2022 - Report of
Corporate Director of Children and Young Peoples'
Services (Pages 67 - 114)

12.

Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020/21 - Report of
Corporate Director of Resources (Pages 115 - 142)

13.

Annual Report of the Standards Committee - Report of
Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Monitoring
Officer (Pages 143 - 152)

14.

Motions on Notice
Motion by Cllr M Wilkes
In September the £20 a week uplift on universal credit will
be scrapped by the government.
This was introduced to help people during the pandemic.
However with many people still struggling, furlough coming
to an end and inflation starting to rise for key essentials, it is
clear that removal of the uplift will have a significant impact
on hard working County Durham residents.
Scrapping the £20 uplift will result over the course of the
following year from September in County Durham losing
£55 million pounds from the economy.
Further it will put severe strain on so many low income
families already struggling.
We therefore call on the government to make the uplift
permanent.
Motion by Councillor R Crute
Last week (Wednesday 7 July 2021) Cabinet considered a
report on MTFP (12) which highlighted the ‘significant
financial uncertainty’ facing the local authority as a result of
a number of contributory factors, including persistent delays
to the government’s Fair Funding Review, Business Rates
Retention Scheme and its proposed funding model for
Social Care.
The constant delays to these government initiatives are
having a direct impact on this council by restricting its ability
to properly plan ahead. The delays have also resulted in

the ‘significant financial uncertainty’ facing this council as
outlined in last week’s Cabinet report.
To compound matters, figures published by the LGA
illustrate the impact austerity and government funding cuts
are having on the people of County Durham, with spending
power reductions of £343 (or 16%) per household since
2011/12. This compares with spending power increases in
other local authority areas such as Wokingham and Surrey.
Consequently, this council resolves to:
Write to the prime minister and call on the government to:
•

demonstrate its commitment to ‘levelling-up’ by
assuring this local authority that it will not lose out
financially as a result of the government’s ongoing
Fair Funding Review, Business Rates Retention
Scheme and forthcoming Comprehensive
Spending Review

•

and also commit to resolving the funding crisis in
Adults and Childrens Social Care and the
uncertainty, potential risk and financial burden it
creates for this council and the people of County
Durham

Motion by Councillor K Shaw
On Monday 10th February 2020, the Council received a
planning application to demolish the former Hassockfield
Secure Training Centre and build 127 new dwellings,
including 25 for social housing, with over £900,000 for
Section 106 funding.
However, in January 2021 the Ministry of Justice revealed
plans to develop the site into a Category 3 style prison for
refugee women. As the Northern Echo reported, the MoJ
did not pursue a Certificate of Lawfulness, thus depriving
local residents of the chance to scrutinise plans through
Durham County Council’s planning portal. The proposed
detention centre would deny 127 local Consett family’s
access to high quality housing, including 25 families the
ability to access social housing. According to Durham
Insight, 3.5% of Consett’s population live in areas in the top
10% most deprived nationally. Following the financial
pressures caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the need for
social housing in this area is now more important than ever.

Rather than give the community of Consett and Medomsley
a clean break from the site’s history of human rights
abuses, the MoJ seeks to build on a toxic legacy. Human
rights groups have raised concerns about the treatment of
women in similar detention facilities, including Yarl’s Wood
in Bedford, which is now expanding into a larger detention
centre for men. Detainees at Yarl’s Wood have spoken of
racial abuse, poor hygiene facilities and experiences of
sexual abuse. Local activists started the ‘No To
Hassockfield’ campaign, which is supported by faith groups,
the Police and Crime Commissioner and Health North East,
to highlight their concerns that such abuses could take
place in County Durham.
Human rights abuses do not take place in every prisonstyle facility, but given the history of the Hassockfield site, it
is proposed that the site should be an alternative
development, to move away from its shameful past.
Resolves:
1.
To oppose the loss of the much-needed social
housing in the Consett area, for the sake of another
controversial detention facility.
2.

15.

To write to the Secretary of State for Justice and Lord
Chancellor, to demand greater transparency and
dialogue over future uses of the site.

Questions from Members

And pursuant to the provisions of the above-named act, I Hereby
Summon You to attend the said meeting
Dated this 6th day of July 2021

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
To:

All Members of the County Council

Agenda Item 1

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL
At an Ordinary Meeting of the County Council held in the The Main Hall Spennymoor Leisure Centre on Wednesday 23 June 2021 at 10.00 am

Present:
Councillor W Stelling in the Chair
Councillors E Adam, R Adcock-Forster, V Andrews, J Atkinson, P Atkinson,
B Avery, B Bainbridge (Vice-Chair), A Batey, K Batey, A Bell, C Bell, R Bell,
G Binney, J Blakey, D Boyes, D Brown, L Brown, J Cairns, J Chaplow, R CharltonLainé, J Charlton, I Cochrane, J Cosslett, R Crute, M Currah, S Deinali, T Duffy,
K Earley, J Elmer, K Fantarrow, L Fenwick, C Fletcher, D Freeman, J Griffiths,
O Gunn, D Hall, C Hampson, D Haney, A Hanson, K Hawley, P Heaviside,
T Henderson, S Henig, J Higgins, L Holmes, C Hood, A Hopgood, D Howarth,
J Howey, C Hunt, G Hutchinson, A Jackson, M Johnson, N Jones, P Jopling,
C Kay, L Kennedy, C Lines, L Maddison, R Manchester, C Martin, E Mavin,
B McAloon, M McGaun, D McKenna, M McKeon, I McLean, S McMahon, J Miller,
B Moist, D Mulholland, D Nicholls, J Nicholson, D Oliver, R Ormerod, E Peeke,
R Potts, P Pringle, J Purvis, J Quinn, S Quinn, A Reed, I Roberts, M Roberts,
K Robson, K Rooney, J Rowlandson, A Savory, E Scott, P Sexton, K Shaw,
A Shield, J Shuttleworth, M Simmons, A Simpson, T Smith, M Stead, A Sterling,
D Stoker, T Stubbs, A Surtees, D Sutton-Lloyd, F Tinsley, S Townsend, C Varty,
E Waldock, M Walton, A Watson, M Wilkes, M Wilson, S Wilson, D Wood, R Yorke
and S Zair
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Coult, L Hovvels,
B Kellett, C Marshall, L Mavin, S McDonnell, P Molloy, G Richardson and P Taylor

Prior to the commencement of the meeting the Chair reported with regret the
passing of former Durham County Councillor and Alderman Brian Walker
who represented the Lumley Electoral Division from 1981 until 2008.
Members gave a moments reflection out of respect to Brian.

1

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 May 2021 were confirmed by the
Council as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

Page 5

2

Declarations of interest
Councillor M Idwal-Roberts declared a pecuniary interest in the Motion in the
name of Councillor R Yorke
Councillor M McGaun declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 9 as the
Lanchester Neighbourhood Plan was within his electoral division.
Councillor D Oliver declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 9 as the
Lanchester Neighbourhood Plan was within his electoral division.
In response to a question from Councillor S Townsend the Head of Legal and
Democratic Services confirmed that Councillor Idwal-Roberts had received
legal advice and it was a matter for him to determine whether or not he had
an interest to declare.
Councillor F Tinsley declared an interest in Agenda Item No 9 as former
Chair of Greater Willington Town Council.
Councillor O Gunn declared an interest in Agenda Item No 9 as the
Oakenshaw Neighbourhood Plan was within her electoral division.
Councillor R Crute moved to suspend the relevant Standing Orders to allow
sufficient time to debate the Motions on Notice at Agenda Item No 10. The
Head of Legal and Democratic Services sought clarity that Councillor Crute
moved to suspend the time allowed for Motions on Notice. Councillor Crute
replied that he moved to suspend Standing Orders 4.2 and 10.7 to extend
both the time allowed for the meeting and the time allowed for discussion of
Motions on Notice at Agenda Item 10.
Councillor A Surtees seconded Councillor Crute’s motion and requested a
recorded vote
Councillor R Bell requested that the two requests be voted on separately.
There was no objection to extending the time allowed for Motions but was
objection to extending the time allowed for the meeting.
Council agreed the suspension of Standing Order 10.7 which related to the
time allowed for the discussion of Motions.
A vote was taken on the Motion to suspend Standing Order 4.2.
For the Motion
Councillors E Adam, R Adcock-Forster, J Atkinson, P Atkinson, A Batey, K
Batey, G Binney, J Blakey, D Boyes, J Chaplow, R Charlton-Lainé, I

Page 6

Cochrane, R Crute, S Deinali, K Earley, L Fenwick, C Fletcher, J Griffiths, O
Gunn, C Hampson, A Hanson, T Henderson, S Henig, J Higgins, C Hood, G
Hutchinson, M Johnson, C Kay, L Kennedy, R Manchester, D McKenna, M
McKeon, I McLean, S McMahon, J Miller, D Mulholland, D Nicholls, P
Pringle, J Purvis, S Quinn, I Roberts, K Shaw, T Smith, A Surtees, F Tinsley,
S Townsend, C Varty, E Waldock, M Wilson, S Wilson, D Wood and R
Yorke.
Against the Motion
Councillors B Avery, B Bainbridge, A Bell, C Bell, R Bell, D Brown, L Brown,
J Cairns, J Charlton, J Cosslett, M Currah, T Duffy, J Elmer, K Fantarrow, D
Freeman, D Haney, K Hawley, P Heaviside, L Holmes, A Hopgood, D
Howarth, J Howey, C Hunt, A Jackson, N Jones, P Jopling, C Lines, L
Maddison, C Martin, E Mavin, B McAloon, M McGaun, B Moist, J Nicholson,
D Oliver, R Ormerod, E Peeke, R Potts, J Quinn, A Reed, M I Roberts, K
Robson, K Rooney, J Rowlandson, A Savory, E Scott, P Sexton, A Shield, J
Shuttleworth, M Simmons, A Simpson, M Stead, W Stelling, A Sterling, D
Stoker, T Stubbs, D Sutton-Lloyd, M Walton, A Watson, M Wilkes and S Zair.
Councillor Crute sought advice. The Council had agreed to suspend
Standing Order 10.7 which extended the time for debating Motions on Notice
but had not agreed to suspend Standing Order 4.2 to extend the length of the
meeting. Councillor Crute asked what would happen if the time for the
meeting had been reached and consideration of the Motions on Notice had
not been completed. The Head of Legal and Democratic services replied
that the meeting would continue for 2½ hours. If at the end of this time the
Council was still dealing with Motions on Notice the Motion being dealt with
at that time would be put to a vote and any remaining Motions would be
considered at the next Council meeting in the order they were currently on
the agenda.

3

Chair's Announcements
The Chair informed Council that his chosen charity to support during his term
of office would be Willow Burn Hospice at Lanchester. The staff and
volunteers at the Hospice did an amazing job, providing care, comfort and
compassion at the end of life, supporting not only patients but also their
families and friends at a time when they need it most.
The Chair asked that staff and Members consider enrolling on the Pennies
from Heaven scheme which allowed staff and Members to donate to the
charity via payroll deductions. Monthly salaries were rounded down to the
nearest pound with the pennies donated to the Willow Burn Hospice.

Page 7

Further details about the scheme would be emailed from the Civic Office
following the meeting.

4

Leader's Report
The Council noted a report from the Leader of the Council as follows:
The Leader welcomed Members to the first full council meeting under the
new Joint Administration. Despite the change in leadership, the council’s
current focus remained its response to the pandemic.
A steep rise in infection rates had meant the easing of national restrictions
had been paused for four weeks in order to allow more time to deliver the
vaccination programme. With this in mind, it was vital that vigilance was
maintained. The Delta variant, which accounted for the majority of new cases
of coronavirus, was more transmissible, so everybody needed to take extra
care in following public health guidance.
Plans to transform Bishop Auckland into a world-class visitor destination of
national importance had moved a step closer, with the announcement that
the Council had been successful in bidding for a £33.2 million share of the
government’s Stronger Towns Fund.
The wide-ranging proposals received further endorsement when Robert
Jenrick, Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government,
visited the town earlier in the month. The minister, who took a tour of sites
including the Auckland Tower, Auckland Castle and park, the Market Place
and Newgate Street, described the Stronger Town Board’s vision for Bishop
Auckland as “one of the most impressive projects” he had seen anywhere in
the country.
A visit had also taken place from Lord Callanan, Minister for Climate Change
and Corporate Responsibility, who paid a visit to homes in Chilton to see how
work to install free low carbon external wall insulation and renewable heating
systems was progressing.
Durhan County Council was named local authority of the year at the Northern
Housing Awards, recognising its housing strategy and work to tackle
homelessness. It followed the authority’s work to deliver more housing and
investment in local services for communities as part of the County Durham
Housing Strategy.
Mobile and home-based businesses had until the end of the month to apply
for financial support designed to help them through the coronavirus
pandemic. Earlier this year, limited fixed funding was made available by the
Government through the Additional Restrictions Grant which could be used

Page 8

to fund a discretionary policy. Councils were expected to give financial
assistance to businesses in the hospitality, leisure, accommodation and
personal care sectors which had not had any previous support. In rolling out
its discretionary policy, the council extended the support to businesses in
shared commercial spaces, taxi drivers, registered childcare providers,
childminders as well as driving instructors. Last month, the Council also
extended the ARG support beyond the original deadline, giving businesses
until the end of June to claim.
The Council had launched its annual recruitment drive for apprentices, with
opportunities available across a wide range of occupations, from highways,
gardening and bricklaying to business administration, human resources and
commercial procurement. The council was awarded a place in the
government’s Top 100 Apprenticeships Employers, recognising its extensive
apprenticeship programme.
This week saw the reopening of Gala Theatre, Durham and Empire Theatre,
in Consett, which had both been closed since the beginning of the first
lockdown in March 2020. Both venues had undergone a facelift, with more
than £1.4 million being spent on refurbishments. Social distancing measures
were in place and customers were being asked to follow public health advice
on Hands. Face. Space. while visiting.
Some of the Council’s foster carers had been talking about their experiences
to promote Foster Care Fortnight. The council urgently needed foster carers,
with more than 900 children currently in care of some kind in County
Durham. It was hoped that the Council’s foster carers would help inspire
others to give a child a loving home.
Those who pass through Durham City would have noticed that the Council’s
floral display at Gilesgate also had a fostering theme this year. Children from
Durham Gilesgate Primary School in the city joined with the fostering service
and the civic pride and clean and green teams to plant the display, which
also supported the Durham in Bloom campaign.
This week, thousands of schoolchildren were making some noise for Make
Music Day UK’s Big Play event. Durham County Music Service kicked off
the celebrations in the area with a free Big Sing event at Ushaw College on
Monday but activities were set to continue throughout the week.
This month, the Council had launched a new recycling scheme enabling
residents to drop off small electrical or battery-operated items at one of 17
collection points across the county. Run in partnership with Valpak, AO.com
and County Durham Furniture Help Scheme, the project helped prevent
items being thrown out as waste and offers the opportunity for them to be
recycling into something new.

Page 9

The highly anticipated Durham Brass festival would take place next month,
running from Wednesday 14 to Sunday 18 July. Although the Government
had decided to delay Stage 4 of the national roadmap out of lockdown,
‘Brass’ was largely an outdoor programme and social distancing
arrangements mean it could still go ahead as planned. A £724,000 Culture
Recovery Fund Grant from Arts Council England had been used to set up an
outdoor stage at Durham Racecourse, where people would be able to enjoy
three days of free live music.
Nominations were open for the 2021 County Durham Environment Awards,
the annual celebration of projects that demonstrated great design,
environmental guardianship and community spirit across the county. Hosted
by the County Durham Environment and Climate Change Partnership, the
Awards recognised the efforts of a wide range of organisations, communities
and individuals. Details of how to enter were available on the County Council
website.
Councillor C Kay had agreed to remain in the role of Cycling Champion for
the County Council. Councillor Kay had been a great ambassador for
promoting cycling on behalf of the Council and the Leader thanked him for
agreeing to continue.

5

Questions from the Public
One public question had been received from Ms T Tucker, a member of the
public. The question related to a Motion passed by Durham County Council
regarding fuel poverty and the inequality of tariffs by payment method to end
users.
Ms Tucker was in attendance and asked her question. Councillor A Shield,
Portfolio Holder for Equality and Inclusion thanked Ms Tucker for her
question and provided a response. The Chair advised the Council that the
response would be published on the Council’s website.

6

Petitions
There were no petitions for consideration.

7

Report from the Cabinet
The Leader of the Council noted that the report from the Cabinet related to
items considered by the previous Cabinet on 17 March and 21 April 2021 (for
copy see file of Minutes).

Page 10

The Leader of the Council thanked all Members who sat under the previous
term of office for their work and commitment to communities and the County.

8

Safe Durham Partnership Plan 2021-2025
The Council considered a report of the Corporate Director of
Neighbourhoods and Climate Change which presented the Safe Durham
Partnership Plan 2021-25 for agreement (for copy see file of Minutes).
Moved by Councillor Shuttleworth, Seconded by Councillor Shield and
Resolved:
That the Safe Durham Partnership Plan 2021-25 be approved.

9

Adoption of Durham City, Lanchester and Oakenshaw
Neighbourhood Plans
The Council considered a report of the Director of Regeneration, Economy
and Growth regarding the adoption of the Durham City, Lanchester and
Oakenshaw Neighbourhood Plans (for copy see file of Minutes).
In Moving adoption of the Plans Councillor E Scott commended communities
for the work undertaken in producing the Plans which reflected the priorities
of local people. In Seconding adoption of the Plans Councillor Rowlandson
added that local communities had enthusiastically engaged in neighbourhood
planning.
Resolved:
That:
(a)
the Durham City Neighbourhood Plan at Appendix 2 be formally
made (adopted) by the Council to become part of the statutory
development plan;
(b)
the Lanchester Village Neighbourhood Plan at Appendix 3 be
formally made (adopted) by the Council to become part of the
statutory development plan;
(c)
the Oakenshaw Neighbourhood Plan at Appendix 4 be formally
made (adopted) by the Council to become part of the statutory
development plan;
(d)
the Head of Legal and Demographic Services be authorised to
satisfy the necessary publicity requirements of the
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 in respect
of Durham City, Lanchester and Oakenshaw Neighbourhood
Plans.

Page 11

10

Motions on Notice
Moved by Councillor Tinsley, Seconded by Councillor Boyes
The Coronavirus (COVID-19): health, care and volunteer workers parking
pass has been available to those at the forefront of our fight against the
pandemic. This pass provides evidence of entitlement to free parking for
those on duty as an NHS staff member, health or social care worker, or NHS
Volunteer Responder. This is to enable them to access parking concessions
in local authority owned off-street car parks and on-street bays.
Following the publication of the government’s roadmap for lifting COVID-19
restrictions, a decision has been taken by government to withdraw the
emergency parking pass guidance by 21 June 2021.
This Council resolves to continue and fund the Coronavirus (COVID-19):
health, care and volunteer workers parking pass in County Durham for period
of 1 year from 23 June 2021. The fight against this terrible disease continues
and those in our health and care sector deserve our continued support.
Continuation of the pass will assist those who have worked so incredibly hard
to save lives. They do not deserve the financial burden of now having to pay
for parking when their crucially important work continues against Coronavirus
(COVID-19).
Councillor J Shuttleworth, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Rural Communities
and Highways Moved the following amendment, Seconded by Councillor J
Rowlandson:
The Coronavirus (COVID-19): health, care and volunteer workers parking
pass has been available to those at the forefront of our fight against the
pandemic. This pass provides evidence of entitlement to free parking for
those on duty as an NHS staff member, health or social care worker, or NHS
Volunteer Responder. This is to enable them to access parking concessions
in local authority owned off-street car parks and on-street bays.
Following the publication of the government’s roadmap for lifting COVID-19
restrictions, a decision has been taken by government to withdraw the
emergency parking pass guidance by 21 June 2021.
This Council resolves to continue and fund the Coronavirus (COVID-19):
health, care and volunteer workers parking pass in County Durham for period
of 1 year from 23 June 2021. The fight against this terrible disease continues
and those in our health and care sector deserve our continued support.
Continuation of the pass will assist those who have worked so incredibly hard
to save lives. They do not deserve the financial burden of now having to pay

Page 12

for parking when their crucially important work continues against Coronavirus
(COVID-19).
This Council resolves to:
1. Write to Government and ask it to extend the scheme until Covid
restrictions are lifted.
2. Review parking arrangements for NHS staff in local authority-owned
off-street car parks and on-street bays as part of the wider review into
car park charging policy.
Upon a vote being taken the Amendment was carried and therefore became
the Substantive Motion.
Upon a further vote being taken the Substantive Motion was carried.

Moved by Councillor Earley, Seconded by Councillor Mulholland
This Council undertakes to provide (through the deployment of finance from
reserves) support for an energy partnership to provide a clean and green
energy solution, capable of servicing the new community hospital and other
developments on the former Consett Steelworks; which following
consultation can demonstrate the support of the local community.
Councillor M McKeon requested a named vote
For the Motion
Councillors E Adam, R Adcock-Forster, V Andrews, J Atkinson, P Atkinson,
A Batey, K Batey, G Binney, D Boyes, J Chaplow, R Charlton-Lainé, R Crute,
S Deinali, K Earley, J Elmer, L Fenwick, C Fletcher, J Griffiths, O Gunn, D
Hall, C Hampson, A Hanson, S Henig, J Higgins, M Johnson, C Kay, L
Kennedy, R Manchester, D McKenna, M McKeon, I McLean, S McMahon, J
Miller, D Mulholland, D Nicholls, P Pringle, J Purvis, S Quinn, I Roberts, K
Shaw, T Smith, A Surtees, F Tinsley, S Townsend, C Varty, E Waldock, M
Wilson, S Wilson, D Wood and R Yorke.
Against the Motion
Councillors B Avery, B Bainbridge, A Bell, C Bell, R Bell, J Blakey, D Brown,
L Brown, J Cairns, J Charlton, I Cochrane, J Cosslett, M Currah, T Duffy, K
Fantarrow, D Freeman, D Haney, K Hawley, P Heaviside, T Henderson, L
Holmes, C Hood, A Hopgood, D Howarth, J Howey, C Hunt, G Hutchinson, A

Page 13

Jackson, N Jones, P Jopling, C Lines, L Maddison, C Martin, E Mavin, B
McAloon, M McGaun, B Moist, J Nicholson, D Oliver, R Ormerod, E Peeke,
R Potts, J Quinn, A Reed, M I Roberts, K Robson, K Rooney, J Rowlandson,
A Savory, E Scott, P Sexton, A Shield, J Shuttleworth, M Simmons, A
Simpson, M Stead, W Stelling, A Sterling, D Stoker, T Stubbs, D SuttonLloyd, M Walton, A Watson, M Wilkes and S Zair.
The Motion was lost.

Moved by Councillor Gunn, Seconded by Councillor Surtees
Durham County Council notes that:
On 2nd June the Government published its plans for education recovery after
the pandemic. Sir Kevan Collins, appointed by the Prime Minister as the
Government’s Education Recovery Commissioner had judged that some
£15bn was needed to repair the damage done to the nation’s pupils because
of Covid. The Government’s offer of £1.4bn falls far short and is inadequate.
In his resignation letter Sir Kevan Collins stated, ‘I do not believe it is credible
that a successful recovery can be achieved with a programme of support of
this size’.
The Education Policy Institute have calculated that £1.4b amounts to £50 per
pupil per year. This contrasts with £1,600 per pupil in the USA and £2,500
per pupil in the Netherlands. It means that the total funding committed to
education recovery so far amounts to £310 per pupil over 3 years. If
Government is committed to a high standard of education for all children
regardless of ability to pay then £50 per pupil is simply not enough. The
promise of providing increased funds later is a promise too late. Parents and
school staff deserve an immediate strong financial commitment that supports
high standards and strong mental health for all children and young people.
Furthermore, the Secretary of State for Education has allowed change to the
census used to calculate Pupil Premium funding for the most disadvantaged
pupils. This means that £150 million is being taken away from young people
and schools most in need at a time when they most need it.
Durham County Council resolves:
To write to the Prime Minister and call on the Government to:
1.
demonstrate its ambition for our children and young people and give
our education system the resources they need to ensure that no child is left
behind;

Page 14

2.
recognise that areas of the country with children who are most
disadvantaged, like County Durham and the whole of the North East Region,
should be given the highest priority and immediate increased financial
investment.
Councillor T Henderson, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Children and Young
People’s Services Moved the following amendment, Seconded by Councillor
P Sexton, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Adult and Health Services:
Durham County Council notes that:
On 2nd June the Government published its plans for education recovery after
the pandemic. Sir Kevan Collins, appointed by the Prime Minister as the
Government’s Education Recovery Commissioner had judged that some
£15bn was needed to repair the damage done to the nation’s pupils because
of Covid. The Government’s offer of £1.4bn falls far short and is inadequate.
In his resignation letter Sir Kevan Collins stated, ‘I do not believe it is credible
that a successful recovery can be achieved with a programme of support of
this size’.
The Education Policy Institute have calculated that £1.4b amounts to £50 per
pupil per year. This contrasts with £1,600 per pupil in the USA and £2,500
per pupil in the Netherlands. It means that the total funding committed to
education recovery so far amounts to £310 per pupil over 3 years. If
Government is committed to a high standard of education for all children
regardless of ability to pay then £50 per pupil is simply not enough. The
promise of providing increased funds later is a promise too late. Parents and
school staff deserve an immediate strong financial commitment that supports
high standards and strong mental health for all children and young people.
Furthermore, the Secretary of State for Education has allowed change to the
census used to calculate Pupil Premium funding for the most disadvantaged
pupils. This means that £150 million is being taken away from young people
and schools most in need at a time when they most need it.
Durham County Council resolves:
To write to the Prime Minister and call on the Government to:
1. demonstrate its ambition for our children and young people and give our
education system the resources they need to ensure that no child is left
behind;
2. recognise that areas of the country with children who are most
disadvantaged, like County Durham and the whole of the North East

Page 15

Region, should be given the highest priority and immediate increased
financial investment.
Upon a vote being there was an equality of votes. The Chair exercised his
casting vote for the Amendment which was carried and therefore became
the Substantive Motion.
Councillor E Scott, Portfolio Holder for Economy and Partnerships
considered that sufficient time had been taken debating the Amendment and
Moved that it be put to the vote.
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services advised Council that this was a
Procedural Motion to put the Amendment to the vote. Under the Council
Procedure Rules the Chair needed to take a view as to whether or not the
matter had been sufficiently debated. If in the Chair’s view the matter had
been sufficiently debated the Procedural Motion to put the Amendment to a
vote would be voted on.
The Chair informed the Council it was his view the matter had been
sufficiently debated and the Procedural Motion was put to a vote.
Upon a vote being taken the Procedural Motion was carried
Upon a vote being taken the Amendment was carried.

Moved by Councillor Yorke, Seconded by Councillor S Townsend:
This Council believes that the people of West Auckland, St Helen Auckland
and Spring Gardens agree a new bypass would bring relief to the residents
of Toft Hill, but will not accept the burden of a very significant increase in
traffic through West Auckland and resolves that the A688 bypass must be
completed from Oakley Service Station roundabout directly to beyond the
Sportsmans Inn at Toft Hill. We call upon the County Council to ensure that a
full and proper consultation is carried out and that our communities will not
be adversely impacted.
Councillor J Shuttleworth, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Rural Communities
and Highways Moved the following amendment, Seconded by Councillor R
Bell, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance:
This Council believes that the proposed new Toft Hill bypass (from near the
Sportsmans Arms to the junction of the A68 Hartbrigg Lane), provision for
which was made in the Levelling Up bid approved by Cabinet on 16 June
2021 people of West Auckland, St Helen Auckland and Spring Gardens
agree a new bypass would will bring relief to the residents of Toft Hill, with no

Page 16

effect on traffic but will not accept the burden of a very significant increase in
traffic through West Auckland and commits to working with the people,
Parish Council and Councillors of West Auckland, St Helen Auckland and
Spring Gardens to prepare the case for a resolves that the A688 bypass for
these communities. must be completed from Oakley Service Station
roundabout directly to beyond the Sportsmans Inn at Toft Hill. We call upon
the County Council to ensure that a full and proper consultation is carried out
and that our communities will not be adversely impacted.
The Char informed Council that the time limit of 2½ hours for the meeting
had been reached. The Amendment would be put to the vote.
Councillor R Yorke requested a named vote
For the Amendment
Councillors B Avery, B Bainbridge, A Bell, C Bell, R Bell, J Blakey, D Brown,
L Brown, J Cairns, J Charlton, I Cochrane, J Cosslett, T Duffy, K Fantarrow,
D Freeman, D Haney, K Hawley, P Heaviside, T Henderson, L Holmes, C
Hood, A Hopgood, D Howarth, J Howey, C Hunt, G Hutchinson, A Jackson,
N Jones, P Jopling, C Lines, L Maddison, C Martin, E Mavin, M McGaun, B
Moist, J Nicholson, D Oliver, E Peeke, R Potts, J Quinn, A Reed, K Robson,
K Rooney, J Rowlandson, A Savory, E Scott, P Sexton, A Shield, J
Shuttleworth, M Simmons, A Simpson, M Stead, W Stelling, A Sterling, D
Stoker, T Stubbs, D Sutton-Lloyd, M Walton, A Watson and M Wilkes.
Against the Amendment
Councillors E Adam, R Adcock-Forster, V Andrews, J Atkinson, P Atkinson,
A Batey, K Batey, G Binney, D Boyes, J Chaplow, R Charlton-Lainé, R Crute,
S Deinali, K Earley, L Fenwick, C Fletcher, J Griffiths, O Gunn, D Hall, C
Hampson, A Hanson, S Henig, J Higgins, M Johnson, C Kay, L Kennedy, R
Manchester, B McAloon, D McKenna, M McKeon, I McLean, S McMahon, J
Miller, D Nicholls, P Pringle, J Purvis, S Quinn, I Roberts, K Shaw, T Smith, A
Surtees, F Tinsley, S Townsend, C Varty, E Waldock, M Wilson, S Wilson, D
Wood, R Yorke and S Zair.
Abstention
Councillor J Elmer.
The Amendment was carried and therefore became the Substantive Motion.
Councillor R Yorke requested a named vote

Page 17

For the Motion
Councillors B Avery, B Bainbridge, A Bell, C Bell, R Bell, J Blakey, D Brown,
L Brown, J Cairns, J Charlton, I Cochrane, J Cosslett, T Duffy, K Fantarrow,
D Freeman, D Haney, K Hawley, P Heaviside, T Henderson, L Holmes, C
Hood, A Hopgood, D Howarth, J Howey, C Hunt, G Hutchinson, A Jackson,
N Jones, P Jopling, C Lines, L Maddison, C Martin, E Mavin, B McAloon, M
McGaun, B Moist, J Nicholson, D Oliver, E Peeke, R Potts, J Quinn, A Reed,
K Robson, K Rooney, J Rowlandson, A Savory, E Scott, P Sexton, A Shield,
J Shuttleworth, M Simmons, A Simpson, M Stead, W Stelling, A Sterling, D
Stoker, T Stubbs, D Sutton-Lloyd, F Tinsley, M Walton, A Watson and M
Wilkes.
Against the Motion
Councillors E Adam, R Adcock-Forster, V Andrews, J Atkinson, P Atkinson,
A Batey, K Batey, G Binney, D Boyes, J Chaplow, R Charlton-Lainé, R Crute,
S Deinali, K Earley, J Elmer, L Fenwick, C Fletcher, J Griffiths, O Gunn, D
Hall, C Hampson, A Hanson, S Henig, J Higgins, M Johnson, C Kay, L
Kennedy, R Manchester, D McKenna, M McKeon, I McLean, S McMahon, J
Miller, D Nicholls, P Pringle, J Purvis, S Quinn, I Roberts, K Shaw, T Smith, A
Surtees, S Townsend, C Varty, E Waldock, M Wilson, S Wilson, D Wood, R
Yorke and S Zair.
The Substantive Motion was carried.

11

Questions from Members
There were no questions from Members.

Page 18

County Council

Agenda Item 7

14 July 2021
Report from the Cabinet

Report of Cabinet

Electoral division(s) affected:
All

Purpose of the Report
1

To provide information to the Council on issues considered by the
Cabinet at the meeting held on 16 June 2021 to enable Members to ask
related questions.

Contents
16 June 2021
Item 1 - Levelling Up Fund
Item 2 - COVID-19 Commissioning of Designated Settings
Item 3 - Safe Durham Partnership Plan 2021-25
Item 4 –Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2025
Item 5 - Area Action Partnerships and Member Neighbourhood Budgets
Proposed Operating Arrangements 2021/22
Item 6 - Review of DLI Collection Archive and the Future of the DLI
Building and Grounds
Item 7 - Review of Durham County Council Headquarters

Page 19

1.

Levelling Up Fund [Key Decision No: REG/03/21]
Cabinet Portfolio Holders – Councillors Elizabeth Scott,
Richard Bell, and James Rowlandson
Contacts: Heather Orton 03000 264715, Craig MacLennan
03000 267103, Ray Brewis 03000 264708

In accordance with paragraph 19(a) of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure
Rules, the following key decision was exempt from the call-in procedure due
to the urgent nature of the decision being made. The public notice set out that
the funding rules require the submission of the bid by the 18th of June, and if
the call in rules were not disapplied, the Council would have missed the
opportunity to bid for this funding at that time.
We considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration
Economy and Growth and Interim Corporate Director of Resources which
provided an overview of the guidance and bidding requirements for access to
the Levelling Up Fund. The report sought approval of the ongoing process for
the Council to develop and prioritise potential proposals across County
Durham and the submission of one first round levelling up bid for the Bishop
Auckland Parliamentary Constituency, covering projects for the South West
Durham area. The report outlined the proposed approach to submissions for
round one and identified a £4.78 million match funding requirement to lever an
initial £20 million Levelling Up Fund investment towards the proposed South
West Durham scheme.
In the 2021 budget, Central Government announced the new Levelling Up
Fund (LUF), to provide investment in regeneration and growth in places with
low productivity and poor connectivity. County Durham is identified as one of
the areas of greatest need of levelling up in the UK and has been classified as
a Tier 1 area by Central Government.
Beyond the announcement of the LUF, the Government White Paper on
levelling up is expected in the Autumn 2021 and is expected to set out a more
comprehensive position on what levelling up will mean nationally. For County
Durham, levelling up will require a blend of investments that create different
outcomes for communities. This will include place-based regeneration that
improves the quality of our city, towns and villages, alongside broader
investments to unlock sites for housing and employment and support the
labour market.
Further guidance for the round one levelling up bids was released in March
and April 2021. The LUF is a competitive fund totalling £4 billion for England,
with £600 million made available for Round One bids. Appendix two of the
report provided the key headlines).
Each parliamentary constituency within the local authority area can submit
one bid. Local authorities can only have one successful bid for each of their
Page 20

parliamentary constituencies over the lifecycle of the Fund, which is expected
to run over three phases or bidding rounds. County Durham, with six
parliamentary constituencies is therefore able to submit six bids up to the
value of £120 million. Government guidance suggests that a minimum of 10
percent match funding is required in support of each bid.
Local authorities are the accountable body for all bids and the guidance is
clear that engagement with, and the support of, the local Member of
Parliament for each area is required. There is also an opportunity for a wider
regional transport bid of up to £50 million which need to be supported by the
seven local authorities that constitute the Joint Transport Committee for the
wider region. Bids of up to £20 million per parliamentary constituency can
include a maximum of three cohesively connected projects and must be
delivered with financial completion by March 2024. Business cases must
demonstrate need, deliverability, strategic fit and value for money. Round one
criteria highlight three priority areas for scheme investment:




Transport;
Regeneration and town centres; and
Cultural investment.

The Government has specified that projects should target improvements in
pockets of deprivation and contribute towards carbon net zero targets. The
deadline for submitting a Round One proposal for 2021/22 funding awards
was is 18 June 2021, with priority given to projects that can commence capital
spend on the ground in 2021/22. Successful bids will be announced in the
Autumn. Government has been very clear that projects must be ready to
deliver and have an advanced business case for this deadline, which
realistically means that only those projects that were at an advanced stage
and “shovel ready” at the March 2021 announcement could reasonably be
submitted for the 18 June 2021 deadline.
Government has stated that there will be future opportunities to bid in
subsequent rounds for delivery up to 31 March 2024, or exceptionally into
2024/25 for larger schemes.
Local authorities, as responsible bodies for developing the bids, have received
£125,000 capacity funding to support the development of future bids,
however, it is expected that the development costs of a full programme of
levelling up proposals will be substantially higher than this allocation. An
earmarked reserve of £1 million has been created to accommodate the
estimated cost of developing robust bids for future bidding rounds.
The Council will be seeking a range of appropriate investments across County
Durham for future bidding rounds to support transport connectivity, culture,

Page 21

heritage and regeneration in the city, town centres and villages. Schemes put
forward will be based on the needs of each community.
The Council is fully committed over the three phases of the levelling up
funding to seek investment for each of our six Parliamentary Constituencies of
up to £120 million Levelling Up Funding in total across all the bids. Based in
the bid criteria, one bid had been sufficiently developed and was capable of
submission by the 18 June 2021 deadline. This proposal addressed socioeconomic needs, transport barriers and cultural ambitions within its locality. A
summary of the Bishop Constituency Parliamentary area bid, a rural
connectivity and a cultural programme was outlined in the report. The total
forecast cost of the three linked investments was £30.93 million with pan
existing £2.25 million match funding to the Locomotion element of the
programme through the Science Museum Group and £3.9 million across the
existing County Council capital programme. The report sought approval for
£4.78 million of additional capital investment in support of these proposals,
accommodated from the capital contingencies.
To meet the tight delivery timescales and spend requirements within 2021/22,
additional development costs would be incurred to secure planning, acquire
land and procure delivery arrangements in advance of notification of whether
the bid had been successful.
The Council is, with this and all future levelling up proposals, required to
continue to develop projects at risk whilst funding bids ate assessed by
Central Government. The costs of developing projects would be met from
earmarked reserves.
It was proposed that ambitious bids for the remaining five parliamentary
constituencies were developed in line with anticipated timelines for Rounds
Two and Three, with robust business cases that meet local priorities and
satisfy national guidelines for Levelling Up. Any match funding requirements
for these bids need to be considered as part of the capital bidding process for
MTFP(12).

Decision
We:

Page 22

(a)

agreed the draft outline approach for the Levelling Up submission
for Round One and supported a first round submission for
investment across South West Durham within the identified
Bishop Auckland Constituency;

(b)

agreed the total scheme costs at an estimated £30.93 million and
a LUF ask of the maximum of £20 million towards the cost of the
proposed scheme;

2.

(c)

agreed to fund an additional £4.78 million of capital investment
from Council capital contingencies to meet the funding gap that
existed with regards to these proposals;

(d)

noted that additional capacity funds will be required alongside the
£125,000 received from Government to develop robust Green
Book Business Cases for Future Rounds that will meet LUF
requirements. This funding is committed to support the
development of business cases across the County and will be
funded from a £1 million earmarked reserve established at year
end 2020/21;

(e)

delegated authority to the Corporate Director for Regeneration,
Economy and Growth and Corporate Director of Resources, in
consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Economy and
Partnerships and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources
Investments and Assets and Deputy Leader and Cabinet Portfolio
Holder for Finance to take all such decisions necessary to
progress and finalise Levelling Up proposals for Round One;

(f)

noted that further reports will be presented to Cabinet in the
Autumn on the further bidding phases, which will seek ambitious
Levelling Up proposals for the remaining five Parliamentary
constituencies;

(g)

agreed that the overall commitment of the Council is to bid for
and secure an ambitious programme across all parliamentary
constituencies in the county from this fund and to seek to
maximise funding with strong proposals for every eligible area in
future bidding rounds;

(h)

noted that the match funding requirements for future bids will
need to form part of the capital bidding process for MTFP(12).

COVID-19 Commissioning of Designated Settings
Cabinet Portfolio Holder – Councillor Paul Sexton
Contact: Neil Jarvis 03000 265683

We considered a report of the Corporate Director of Adult and Health Services
which outlined a delegated decision taken by the Corporate Director of Adult
and Health Services and provided an update on the commissioning of
Designated Settings during the COVID-19 pandemic following the
Government requirement for the Council, along with all Local Authorities (LA),
to commission Designated Settings within care homes to provide a safe
alternative for people who are temporarily unable to return to their usual place
of residence due to their COVID status. The report outlined the delegated

Page 23

decision to commission such beds given the urgent timescales required by the
pandemic and Government direction.
The report set out the commissioning approach across County Durham and
the instances when people may need to access this provision. Designated
Setting Beds were jointly commissioned with County Durham CCG (CDCCG).
The units include dedicated staffing and entrances/exits that can temporarily
support people who were COVID positive. Specific hospital discharge funding
allocated to CDCCG covered the cost of the beds. The report described how
the requirement for beds may need to flex over time and how contracts had
been developed to ensure that the number of beds commissioned could
change in line with need.

Decision
We recommended to note the delegated decision dated 17 November 2020
taken by the Corporate Director for Adult and Health Services in consultation
with the Portfolio Holder for Adult and Health Services, in accordance with the
Officer Scheme of Delegation, Part 3, Table 1, paragraph 12 of the
Constitution.

3.

Safe Durham Partnership Plan 2021-25
Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Councillor John Shuttleworth
Contact: Gordon Elliott 03000 263605

We considered a report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and
Climate change which presented the Safe Durham Partnership Plan (SDPP)
2021-25 for endorsement, prior to final sign off by full Council.
Section 6 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the responsible
authorities (commonly referred to collectively as a Community Safety
Partnership (CSP)) in a local government area to work together in formulating
and implementing strategies to tackle local crime and disorder in the area. In
County Durham this is the Safe Durham Partnership.
The 2007 Regulations set out the way in which the responsible authorities
should carry out their functions as a CSP under Section 6 of the Act, and
require the preparation of:
a)

a partnership plan for the local government area, setting out the CSP’s
priorities.

b)

a county level community safety agreement, setting out the ways the
responsible authorities in the county might work more effectively to
implement the identified priorities by joint working.

Page 24

The SDPP 2021-25 has been aligned to the Durham Police, Crime and
Victims Plan and the Cleveland and Durham Local Criminal Justice
Partnership Plan.
COVID-19 has had a huge impact on how Durham County Council and its
partners deliver services, especially health and social care services to ensure
those who need to access vital services still receive them, whilst also
supporting providers who run essential services. Many of the actions in the
current strategy have supported the approach in these unprecedented times.
This SDPP 2021-25 also considers the impact COVID-19 has on partners,
communities and services and any COVID-19 related actions are included.
The report provided details of the consultation process and the Equality
Impact Assessment (EIA) undertaken as part of the process for developing the
plan. The SDPP 2021-25 was agreed by the Safe Durham Partnership at its
meeting on the 12 March 2021.
We noted the Safe Durham Partnership Plan 2021-25; and recommended it
for approval by Council.

4.

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2025
Cabinet Portfolio Holders: Councillor Paul Sexton and
Councillor Ted Henderson
Contact: Gordon Elliott 03000 263605

We considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhoods and
Climate Change, Corporate Director of Adults and Health Services, Corporate
Director of Children and Young People’s Service and the Director of Public
Health which presented the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS)
2021-2025 for endorsement.
The JHWS is a legal requirement under the Health and Social Care Act 2012,
to ensure health and social care agencies work together to agree services and
initiatives which should be prioritised. The Health and Wellbeing Board has
the responsibility to deliver the JHWS, which is informed by the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA), as part of Durham Insight, which is an
assessment of the current and future health, wellbeing and social care needs
of residents in County Durham.
The JHWS 2021-25 has been aligned to the Director of Public Health Annual
Report 2020, the Marmot 10 Year Review and the County Durham Place
Based Commissioning and Delivery Plan 2020-25. It recognises proposals in

Page 25

the Department of Health and Social Care’s ‘Integration and Innovation:
Working together to improve health and social care for all’ white paper, which
sets out the Government’s legislative proposals for a Health and Care Bill.
COVID-19 has had a huge impact on how Durham County Council and its
partners deliver services, especially health and social care services to ensure
those who need to access vital services still receive them, whilst also
supporting providers who run essential services. Many of the actions in the
current strategy have supported the approach in these unprecedented times.
Utilising the approach to wellbeing, work has taken place with communities
and the voluntary and community sector to support residents who have
shielded, those self-isolating and those who have no other support networks.
This JHWS 2021-25 also considered the COVID-19 impact on partners,
communities and services and any included and COVID-19 actions.
The strategy took account of any governance changes, for example, the
inclusion of the Physical Activity Strategy Committee as a sub-group of the
Health and Wellbeing Board, to ensure greater alignment with physical and
mental wellbeing and physical activity and healthy weight.
A range of consultation, detailed in the report, had been undertaken on the
strategy. The consultation feedback had been used to inform the JHWS 202125. An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) had been undertaken as part of the
process for developing the JHWS. The JHWS 2021-25 was agreed by the
Health and Wellbeing Board at its meeting on 18 March 2021.
Decision
We received and endorsed the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-25.

5.

Area Action Partnerships and Member Neighbourhood
Budgets – Proposed Operating Arrangements 2021/22
Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Councillor Elizabeth Scott
Contact: Gordon Elliott 03000 263605

We considered a report of the Corporate Director of Neighbourhood Services
which set out the proposed approach for Area Action Partnership (AAP)
Boards and Teams to return to a greater local presence as the County
emerges from the effects of the COVID – 19 Pandemic. The report provided
details of the funding to be allocated to AAPs and Elected Members together
with how it would be managed, including proposed changes to the

Page 26

requirements and procedures around the allocation of funding to ensure AAPs
comply with best practice and the Council’s procedures.
As the country continued its efforts to tackle the COVID-19 pandemic and
return to a semblance of ‘normal life,’ arrangements are being put in place to
ensure AAPs can safely connect and be accessible to local communities.
These arrangements will build on the lessons learnt during the last year and
recognise that an immediate return to a pre-COVID way of working will neither
be possible or desirable. The report outlined the steps that would hopefully be
taken over the coming months to return to a greater community presence.
Despite having to adapt to new ways of working during the pandemic, AAPs
had played a vital role in supporting individuals and communities to deal with
the many impacts it has had on life since the first lockdown in March 2020.
AAP teams were instrumental in setting up and staffing the COVID telephone
helpline established by the Council and subsequently oversaw the allocation
of funding to support hundreds of local projects that provided vital support to
thousands of vulnerable people.
In recognition of that role, as well as the previous eleven years of work, AAPs
have been allocated additional funds to support communities to recover as
well as tackle the Council’s aim to revitalise towns and villages.
The report detailed these additional funds and proposed how they would be
managed and sub-divided between the AAP Boards and Elected Members.
AAPs had been in operation for over 12 years and had achieved many
successes. They have supported thousands of local projects, secured millions
of pounds in match funding, inputted into many consultations by the Council
and its partners and critically, supported elected members in their roles as
community champions.
There had been a number of recent changes to the Council’s operating
procedures and regulations, as well as in the broader ‘support community’,
that the report proposes need to be reflected in the procedures for AAPs.
These included changes to the declaration of interest in relation to
Neighbourhood Budget and the required make-up of management committees
for applicant organisations.
The report concluded by recognising that as the county hopefully moved out of
lockdown, the full effects of the pandemic on communities will not be known,
and further changes may be required to ensure the AAPs can maximise their
impact as efficiently as possible.

Page 27

Decision
We agreed :
(c)

that AAP Terms of Reference be amended in order to allow provision
for AAP Board meetings to be held as hybrid meetings, should
individual boards agree to do so;

(d)

to amalgamate the five budget headings: DCC Area Budget, Older
People’s Social Isolation Fund, Youth Grant, Welfare Reform Grant and
the £100,000 COVID Recovery grant into a single ‘Area Budget’ Fund of
£244,902 per AAP, of which a minimum of £125,000 will need to be
defrayed in the current financial year;

(e)

that each Elected Member’s Neighbourhood Budget will be enhanced
with a one-off allocation of £10,000 for spend to support the
revitalisation of towns and villages, with the funding awarded to AAPs
reduced to £210,000 to offset these amendments;

(f)

the capacity for Elected Members to spend on small projects (between
£100 to £999) be increased to £3,000 per annum for the period up to 31
March 2023;

(g)

the proposed information requirements from Elected Members if they
intend to roll forward unspent Neighbourhood Budget allocations
beyond year two of their period of office;

(h)

to the introduction of a new Area Budget / Neighbourhood Budget
Application form;

(i)

that work will be carried out with the nominated AAP Chairs to develop
the criteria for a Countywide AAP fund;

(j)

the changes to the Declaration of Interest process for Councillors when
proposing schemes for Neighbourhood Budget spend in order that it is
in line with the member Code of Conduct.

Page 28

6.

Review of DLI Collection Archive and the Future of the DLI
Building and Grounds
Cabinet Portfolio Holders: Councillors James Rowlandson,
Elizabeth Scott and Councillor Richard Bell
Contacts: Amy Harhoff 03000 276333, Paul Darby Tel: 03000
261030

We considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration
Economy and Growth and the Interim Corporate Director of Resources which
provided details of a review of the proposed arrangements for the care,
storage and display of the Durham Light Infantry Collection, archive, museum
building and grounds. This is a key priority to review and ensure that the proud
and significant military history of County Durham is recognised.
On 21 October 2015, the Cabinet agreed to new arrangements for the storage
and display of the DLI collection which included the storage of items at the
Sevenhills facility and proposals for the loan of items to a number of venues
including Palace Green Library, Bishop Auckland Town Hall, Spennymoor,
Newton Aycliffe and Seaham. This was part of an approach to widening the
exposure of the history of the DLI to wider groups whilst also achieving
medium term financial plan (MTFP) savings.
More substantive arrangements for a permanent display were agreed by
Cabinet on 17 January 2018 where, as part of consideration of a report on the
development of the Aykley Heads site as a strategic employment site and the
relocation of the DCC Headquarters to the city centre, a new History Centre
development, which included a permanent display for the DLI collection, was
agreed. Subsequent to that report, further updates on the development of the
History Centre had been considered by Cabinet on 17 October 2018 and 16
January 2019.
The new History Centre has a capital budget of £19.6 million for the
renovation and the addition of an extension to the Grade II listed building
where the centre would be located.
Kier Construction Limited was awarded the contract following competitive
procurement and commenced on site on in April 2021. The Joint
Administration is seeking to review the options for the future storage, care and
display of the DLI collection. An options appraisal will be produced to include a
full assessment of opportunities, costs, risks and other funding availability.
This will also include an impact assessment on the plans for the new History
Centre, with the outcome considered by Cabinet by September 2021.

Page 29

Since the moving of the DLI Collection to Sevenhills, the former DLI Museum
building has been vacant, and its future has yet to be determined. A full
condition report will be developed, to understand the options available.
Interim measures to improve the area will be undertaken.

Decision
We agreed the preparation of an options appraisal for the future display and
storage of DLI collection and that a further update report is provided to
Cabinet by September 2021.

7.

Review of Durham County Council Headquarters
Cabinet Portfolio Holders: Councillors James Rowlandson,
Elizabeth Scott and Councillor Richard Bell
Contacts: Amy Harhoff 03000 276333, Paul Darby Tel: 03000
261030

We considered a joint report of the Corporate Director of Regeneration,
Economy and Growth and the Interim Corporate Director of Resources which
set out a proposal to review the options for use of the newly constructed
Durham County Council Headquarters (HQ) at The Sands in Durham City.
The report also set out an approach for reviewing the options for the Council’s
HQ functions.
The report reflected Durham County Council’s newly appointed Joint
Administration’s commitment to review the options for Durham County
Council’s Headquarters including reviewing the use of the newly built HQ
building on The Sands in Durham City and having regard for the growth and
employment opportunities at Aykley Heads in Durham City. The review will be
undertaken as quickly as possible whilst ensuring appropriate due diligence is
in place.
The decision to relocate the Council’s HQ to a new building at The Sands in
Durham City and to develop Aykley Heads as a strategic employment site was
agreed by Cabinet on 17 January 2018 in a report entitled “Aykley Heads
Strategic Employment Site, DCC HQ Full Business Case and Future Options
for the County Archive.” Cabinet also considered an exempt report on the
same date which set out the outcome of the procurement exercise to construct
the new HQ including the costings for the development.

Page 30

The 17 January 2018 reports were preceded by earlier reports considering the
strategic need for development and the outline business case for the
proposals.
The construction of the new HQ building has a capital budget of £49.1 million.
Kier Construction Limited was awarded the contract following a competitive
procurement exercise and subsequently work on site commenced in 2018.
The building is substantially built with practical completion expected in
October 2021.
The Joint Administration is seeking to review the options for utilising the new
building at The Sands, Durham City. Work on considering those options was
to commence immediately on agreement of the report and included a site
visit to the new building by lead Members. The Joint Administration wish to
ensure that:
 the options for the location of HQ functions take account of the review of
the new building whilst assessing the options for the existing HQ site at
Aykley Heads, as well as considering any post-Covid recovery issues;
 the strategic employment site proposals for Aykley Heads are fully
considered as part of the review;
 a report is brought back to Cabinet at the earliest opportunity, and not
later than September 2021.
The report proposed that an options appraisal be prepared which to include a
full assessment of opportunities, costs, risks, and the implications of any
proposals that are proposed to be brought forward.

Decision
We agreed that an options appraisal be prepared, as set out in paragraph 6 of
the report and that a further update report is provided to Cabinet, by
September 2021 at the latest.

Councillor A Hopgood
Leader of the Council
6 July 2021

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

County Council

Agenda Item 8

14 July 2021
Initial proposals for new Parliamentary
Constituency Boundaries

Report of Corporate Management Team
Paul Darby, Interim Corporate Director of Resources
Councillor Amanda Hopgood, Leader of the Council
Councillor Richard Bell, Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Finance

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1

To present to Council proposals of the Boundary Commission for
England for new Parliamentary constituency boundaries in England.

Executive summary
2

The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) is an independent and
impartial non-departmental public body, which is responsible for
reviewing Parliamentary constituency boundaries in England.

3

The BCE is required to make recommendations for new Parliamentary
constituency boundaries by 1 July 2023.

4

The Parliamentary Constituencies Act 2020 sets out the rules to be
followed in conducting the review. The aim is to retain the overall
number of constituencies across the UK at 650. The rules set out a
distribution formula, which results in an increase in the number of
constituencies in England from 533 to 543. The rules also require that
every recommended constituency (with the exception of five
constituencies) must have an electorate that is no smaller than 69,724
and no larger than 77,062.

5

The BCE published its initial proposals for the new Parliamentary
constituency boundaries on 8 June 2021. Views on the initial proposals
can be submitted up to 2 August 2021.

Page 33

6

This report summarises the proposals in respect of the North East and
in particular, County Durham.

Recommendation(s)
7

Page 34

Council is recommended to agree that:
(a)

Constitution Working Group seek to agree any principles of
common ground which can be submitted by way of a letter to the
Boundary Commission by 2 August 2021;

(b)

If such a letter is agreed, it will be circulated to all Members of the
Council.

Background
8

The BCE must conduct a review of all the constituencies in England
every eight years. The current review, which commenced in January
2021, is being conducted in accordance with the Parliamentary
Constituencies Act 2020 (the Act). This requires the BCE to make more
equal the number of electors in each constituency.

9

There will be 650 Parliamentary constituencies covering the UK.
England has been allocated 543 constituencies, which is ten more than
there are currently. The rules require that every constituency
recommended by the BCE has no fewer than 69,724 electors and no
more than 77,062.

10

Currently, constituencies across England range from 54,551 to 111,716
electors. In order to achieve the required distribution of electors and an
additional ten constituencies, the BCR is recommending significant
changes to the existing constituency arrangements.

11

As well as the rule in relation to the minimum and maximum number of
electors, the Act also provides that the BCR may take into account:
 Special geographical considerations, including in particular the
size, shape and accessibility of a constituency;
 Local government boundaries which existed, or were prospective
on 1 December 2020;
 Boundaries of existing constituencies;
 Any local ties that would be broken by changes in constituencies;
and
 The inconveniences attendant on such changes.

12

The initial proposals for the North East are therefore based on local
government boundaries that existed on 1 December 2020. In a number
of existing constituencies, changes to local government wards since
those constituencies were last updated in 2010, have resulted in the
new ward effectively being split, between the constituency the old ward
was wholly a part of, and at least one other existing constituency.

13

As part of the proposals, the BCR will by default seek to realign the
boundaries of constituencies with up to date ward boundaries in order to
reunite wards that are currently divided between existing constituencies.
Where there has only been minor change to a ward, this approach may
see an existing constituency boundary change only very slightly to
realign with the new ward. Where wards in an area have been changed

Page 35

more significantly, this may result in the area covered by the new ward
becoming part of a different constituency.
14

The BCR have tried to retain existing constituencies wherever possible
whilst meeting the other requirements. However, this has proved
difficult. The initial proposals for the North East region retain just under
7% of existing constituencies in the region. The remainder are new
constituencies although the BCR consider that in a number of cases the
changes to the existing constituencies are fairly minor.

Timetable for Review
15

There are five stages to the review, which are summarised below. The
review is currently at Stage 2:

Stage One

Stage Two
Stage Three

Stage Four

Stage Five

Page 36

Development of initial proposals
Review commenced in January 2021. Electorate data published
from 2 March 2021 for each local government ward in England. Data
was provided by local authorities and the Office for National
Statistics. Data used to inform review process and must be used
throughout. Initial proposals published for consultation on 8 June
2021.
Consultation on initial proposals
8 June – 2 August 2021 – eight-week consultation period
Consultation on representations received
Six-week secondary consultation period expected early 2022.
Opportunity to review and comment on responses to initial
proposals.
Between two and five public hearings in each region where views
can be expressed directly to an Assistant Commissioner. Details to
be confirmed.
Development and publication of revised proposals
Analysis of representations received from stages one and two,
consideration as to whether evidence presented persuades BCR to
revise initial proposals. Any changes must be published for a further
four week consultation. Expected to be towards the end of 2022. No
further public hearings.
Development and publication of the final report and
recommendations
BCR will determine final recommendations and report to the Speaker
of the House of Commons by 1 July 2021. Report will be laid in
Parliament and published.
Government required to submit an Order to the Privy Council, which
gives effect to the recommendations. No modifications to the
recommendations unless requested by the Commission.
Privy Council approves Order, new constituencies take effect at the
next general elections. By-elections held in the meantime based on
existing constituencies. Validity of an Order in Council may not be
called into question in any legal proceedings.

Proposals for the North East Region
16

The North East region comprises the unitary authorities of County
Durham, Darlington, Gateshead, Hartlepool, Middlesbrough, Newcastle
Upon Tyne, North Tyneside, Northumberland, Redcar and Cleveland,
South Tyneside, Stockton-on-Tees and Sunderland.

17

There are currently 29 constituencies in the region. Of these, six are
within the permitted electorate range, 21 currently fall below the
minimum number of electors and two are above the maximum number.
There are 1,952,999 electors in region, which gives a mathematical
entitlement of 26.61 constituencies.

18

The BCR are proposing to reduce the number of constituencies from 29
to 27. In seeking to produce 27 constituencies within the electorate
range, the BCR have considered whether local authorities could be
grouped into sub-regions. In doing so, they have tried to respect county
boundaries wherever possible and achieve obvious practical groupings
such as those dictated by the geography of the area such as the Rivers
Tees, Tyne and Wear and the Pennines.

19

The BCR have sought to retain constituencies within combined authority
and unitary authority boundaries, However, where this has not been
possible, they have sought to group authorities together into subregions. It is possible to allocated a whole number of constituencies
within each of the combined authority area without crossing from one
combined authority to another.

20

The BCR have therefore recommended sub-regions which mirror the
North East, North of Tyne and Tees Valley combined authorities with
the exception of Gateshead, which is considered separately. The BCR
considers this to be a practical approach. However, it invites
respondents to the consultation to submit counter-proposals based on
other groupings of counties and unitary authorities, which meet the
statutory requirements of the review.

21

The BCR have discounted combining County Durham and
Northumberland because combining them into a sub-region would
create a constituency which crosses a local authority boundary and one
that crosses the boundaries of the North East and North of Tyne
combined authorities.

22

Grouping Northumberland, Newcastle upon Tyne and North Tyneside
provides a mathematical entitlement to 8.13 constituencies and means
that constituencies can be created within a single sub-region.

23

Gateshead has an electorate of 144,619 and is entitled to 1.97
constituencies. The BCR is therefore proposing two constituencies,
Page 37

without crossing out the unitary authority area and wholly contained
within the local authority boundary.
24

County Durham, South Tyneside and Sunderland have an electorate of
716,893 and an entitlement of 9.77 constituencies. The BCR propose
10 constituencies without crossing out of the North East Combined
Authority and preserves Sunderland Central, which is within the
required electorate range.

25

The Tees Valley Combined Authority has an electorate of 494,601 and
a mathematical entitlement to 6.74 constituencies. The BCR considered
that the Combined Authority area can be allocated seven constituencies
without crossing the combined authority boundary. However, due to the
distribution of electorates in certain parts of the sub-region, the majority
of constituencies will have to be reconfigured to bring them within the
permitted electorate range. Hartlepool has an electorate of 71,228
which provides an entitlement of 0.97. The BCR therefore propose a
Hartlepool constituency within the local authority boundary.

Initial Proposals for the County Durham, South Tyneside and
Sunderland sub-region.
26

Based upon the electorate of the County Durham, South Tyneside and
Sunderland sub-region as set out at paragraph 24, the BCR are
proposing an allocation of ten constituencies rather than the current
eleven.

27

The current City of Durham, North West Durham and Sunderland
Central have electorates within the permitted electorate range. The
BCR state that the electorates of the remaining constituencies are
significantly below the permitted electoral range. This includes
Easington at 61,335 and South Shields at 62,796.

28

There are no proposed changes to the Sunderland Central
Constituency. The BCR propose to treat Gateshead as its own subregion including the Blaydon and Gateshead Constituencies. This will
mean that Jarrow (electorate 65,232) will take in the wards of Castle,
Redhill and St Anne’s from Sunderland West and Cleadon and East
Boldon to the South Shields Constituency. It is proposed that Jarrow
will be renamed Jarrow and Sunderland West to better reflect the new
composition of the constituency.

29

It is proposed that the existing Washington and Sunderland West
constituency gains the wards of Sandhill, Shiney Row, Silksworth and
St Chad’s with the name being changed to Washington and Sunderland
South West to better reflect the geography.

Page 38

30

The BCR propose to move the electoral division of Burnopfield and
Dipton from North West Durham to North Durham, to bring it within the
permitted electorate range at 73,327 electors. The remainder of North
West Durham will remain relatively unchanged, other than to realign its
boundaries with changes to local government ward boundaries, which
creates a constituency with an electorate of 70,300.

31

It is proposed that the City of Durham Constituency is extended into the
Borough of Sunderland as far as Houghton-le-Spring, which has good
connections to Durham via the A690 road.

32

The existing Easington constituency has an electorate of 61,335. The
BCR considered that its position on the coast between Sunderland to
the North and a coterminous Hartlepool constituency to the south limits
the options available. They propose to extend the constituency slightly
westwards and include Doxford Ward from the Borough of Sunderland.
It is also proposed to change the constituency name from Easington to
Seaham and Peterlee to better reflect the main population centres.

33

The BCR propose that the constituencies of Bishop Auckland and
Sedgefield include wards from City of Durham to bring them into the
permitted electorate range. The proposed Bishop Auckland
constituency will include the Brandon ward and the Sedgefield
Constituency will include the Coxhoe ward. The Sedgefield constituency
will be renamed to Newton Aycliffe and Sedgefield to better represent
the main population centres of the Constituency.

34

Under the proposals outlined above, the new constituencies for County
Durham would be as set out at paragraphs (i) to (vi) below. A map
showing the initial proposals for the region is set out at Appendix 2 to
the report. Appendix 3 to the report sets out the existing constituency
wards, the electorate and the proposed constituency. :

i)

Bishop Auckland CC

72,307

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Barnard Castle East

County Durham

6,979

Barnard Castle West

County Durham

6,656

Bishop Auckland
Town

County Durham

6,057

Brandon

County Durham

7,635

Coundon

County Durham

3,177

Page 39

ii)

iii)

Page 40

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Evenwood

County Durham

6,458

Spennymoor

County Durham

8,848

Tudhoe

County Durham

7,044

West Auckland

County Durham

6,545

Willington & Hunwick

County Durham

6,861

Woodhouse Close

County Durham

6,047

City of Durham CC

70,603

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Belmont

County Durham

10,129

Durham South

County Durham

2,204

Elvet & Gilesgate

County Durham

5,740

Framwellgate &
Newton Hall

County Durham

10,315

Neville’s Cross

County Durham

7,409

Sherburn

County Durham

6,722

Copt Hill

Sunderland

9,027

Hetton

Sunderland

9,171

Houghton

Sunderland

9,886

Newton Aycliffe and Sedgefield CC

70,149

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Aycliffe East

County Durham

6,420

Aycliffe North &
Middridge

County Durham

8,406

iv)

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Aycliffe West

County Durham

5,358

Bishop Middleham &
Cornforth

County Durham

2,884

Chilton

County Durham

3,429

Coxhoe

County Durham

9,779

Ferryhill

County Durham

8,125

Sedgefield

County Durham

6,370

Shildon & Dene Valley County Durham

9,630

Trimdon &Thornley

9,748

County Durham

North Durham CC

73,327

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Annfield Plain

County Durham

5,891

Burnopfield & Dipton

County Durham

6,333

Chester-le-Street East County Durham

3,006

Chester-le-Street
North

County Durham

3,071

Chester-le-Street
South

County Durham

5,991

Chester-le-Street
West Central

County Durham

5,811

Craghead & South
Moor

County Durham

5,737

Lumley

County Durham

5,727

North Lodge

County Durham

3,020

Pelton

County Durham

10,227

Page 41

v)

vi)

Page 42

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Sacriston

County Durham

5,638

Stanley

County Durham

6,361

Tanfield

County Durham

6,514

North West Durham CC

70,300

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Benfieldside

County Durham

6,488

Consett North

County Durham

5,874

Consett South

County Durham

3,598

Crook

County Durham

9,277

Deerness

County Durham

9,479

Delves Lane

County Durham

6,232

Esh & Witton Gilbert

County Durham

6,384

Lanchester

County Durham

6,085

Leadgate &
Medomsley

County Durham

6,830

Tow Law

County Durham

3,435

Weardale

County Durham

6,618

Seaham and Peterlee

72,787

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Blackhills

County Durham

6,245

Dawdon

County Durham

6,098

Deneside

County Durham

5,435

Constituency Ward

Local Authority

Electorate

Easington

County Durham

5,710

Horden

County Durham

5,393

Murton

County Durham

5,817

Passfield

County Durham

3,426

Peterlee East

County Durham

5,415

Peterlee West

County Durham

6,131

Seaham

County Durham

5,365

Shotton & South
Hetton

County Durham

6,802

Wingate

County Durham

3,094

Doxford

Sunderland

7,856

Responding to the Initial Proposals
35

The consultation on the BCRs initial proposals is open for a period of
eight weeks, closing on 2 August 2021. The proposals can be viewed at
www.bcereviews.org.uk where you can view the proposed
constituencies and how they compare with existing constituencies and
local government boundaries. Representations on the proposals can be
submitted through the consultation website.

36

When making representations, it is important to bear in mind the
requirements of the Parliamentary Constituency Act 2020. The BCE
highlight in respect of the North East Region:
 They cannot recommend constituencies that have electorates that
contain more than 77,062 or fewer than 69,724 electors;
 The initial proposals are based on local government ward
boundaries (existing or – where relevant – prospective) as at 1
December 2020 as the building blocks of constituencies. Although
where there is strong justification for doing so, the BCE will consider
dividing a ward between constituencies;
 The BCE have constructed constituencies within regions, so as not
to cross regional boundaries. Very compelling reasons would need

Page 43

to be given to persuade the BCE that they should depart from this
approach.
37

When making representations, it is important to bear in mind any
consequential effects for neighbouring areas, which might result from
alternative suggestions. The BCE is required to look at the
recommendations for new constituencies across the whole region (and
England).

38

The Commission are interested to know whether their proposals are
supported. If proposals are not supported, they invite respondents to
use the tools on their website to put forward counter-proposals, which
meet the criteria outlined in this report.

39

The Constitution Working Group met on 30 June 2021 to consider the
proposals. It was noted that this consultation period is shorter than the
initial consultation periods on previous Boundary Commission reviews,
which were 12 weeks.

40

There has been limited opportunity since the proposals were published
to consider whether a response on behalf of the County Council could
be agreed. It is therefore proposed that the Constitution Working Group
seeks to agree points of principle to be included in a letter to be
submitted to the Boundary Commission by 2 August 2021.

Background papers


None

Other useful documents


Initial proposals for new Parliamentary constituency boundaries in
the North East Region. North East | BCE Consultation Portal
(bcereviews.org.uk)

Author(s)
Helen Lynch

Page 44

Tel: 03000 269732

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
The Parliamentary Constituencies Act 2020 makes provision for the requires
the Boundary Commission to conduct a review of Parliamentary Constituency
boundaries, and make recommendations to Government, every 8 years.
Under the review, the overall number of Constituencies will remain unchanged
at 650. The distribution formula provides for an increase of constituencies
from 533 to 543 in England. With the exception of five constituencies, each
must have an electorate that is no smaller than 69,724 and no larger than
77,062.

Finance
There are no financial implications arising out of this report.

Consultation
The report summarises the proposals of the BCE in relation to Parliamentary
constituencies to enable constitution working group to consider whether to
make representations in relation to those proposals.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
There are no equality and diversity implications arising out of the report.

Climate Change
There are no climate change implications arising out of the report.

Human Rights
There are no Human Rights implications arising out of the report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no Crime and Disorder implications arising out of the report.

Staffing
There are no staffing implications arising out of the report.

Accommodation
There are no accommodation implications arising out of the report.

Risk
There are no risks to the Council arising out of the report.

Page 45

Procurement
There are no procurement implications in relation to the report.

Page 46

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 3 Current Electoral Arrangements

Bishop Auckland Constituency
Electoral Division

67,441

Electorate

Barnard Castle East
Barnard Castle West
Bishop Auckland Town
Coundon
Evenwood
Shildon & Dene Valley

6,979
6,656
6,057
3,177
6,458
9,630

Spennymoor
Tudhoe
West Auckland
Woodhouse Close

8,848
7,044
6,545
6,047

City of Durham Constituency
Electoral Division

Proposed
Constituency
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
Newton Aycliffe &
Sedgefield
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change

69,412

Electorate

Belmont
Brandon
Coxhoe

10,129
7,635
9,779

Deerness
Durham South
Elvet & Gilesgate
Framwellgate & Newton
Hall
Nevilles Cross
Sherburn

9,479
2,204
5,740
10,315

Proposed
Constituency
No Change
Bishop Auckland
Newton Aycliffe &
Sedgefield
North West Durham
No Change
No Change
No Change

7,409 No Change
6,722 No Change

Page 49

Easington Constituency
Electoral Division

61,837
Electorate

Blackhalls
Dawdon
Deneside
Easington
Horden
Murton
Passfield
Peterlee East
Peterlee West
Seaham
Shotton & South Hetton

6,245
6,098
5,435
5,710
5,393
5,817
3,426
5,415
6,131
5,365
6,802

Proposed
Constituency
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *
No Change *

* Proposed renaming of constituency to Seaham & Peterlee

North Durham Constituency
Electoral Division
Annfield Plain
Chester le Street East
Chester le Street North
Chester le Street South
Chester le Street West
Central
Craghead & South Moor
Lumley
North Lodge
Pelton
Sacriston
Stanley
Tanfield

Page 50

66,994

Electorate
5,891
3,006
3,071
5,991
5,811
5,737
5,727
3,020
10,227
5,638
6,361
6,514

Proposed
Constituency
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change

North West Durham Constituency
Electoral Division
Benfieldside
Burnopfield & Dipton
Consett North
Consett South
Crook
Delves Lane
Esh & Witton Gilbert
Lanchester
Leadgate & Medomsley
Tow Law
Weardale
Willington & Hunwick

Electorate
6,488
6,333
5,874
3,598
9,277
6,232
6,384
6,085
6,830
3,435
6,618
6,861

Sedgefield Constituency
Electoral Division
Aycliffe East
Aycliffe North &
Middridge
Aycliffe West
Bishop Middleham &
Cornforth
Chilton
Ferryhill
Sedgefield
Trimdon & Thornley
Wingate
Heighington &
Coniscliffe**
Hurworth **

74,015
Proposed
Constituency
No Change
North Durham
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
No Change
Bishop Auckland

65,417
Electorate

Proposed
Constituency
6,420 No Change *
8,406 No Change *
5,358 No Change *
2,884 No Change *
3,429 No Change *
8,125 No Change *
6,370 No Change *
9,748 No Change *
3,094 Seaham & Peterlee
3,531 Darlington
2,978 Stockton West
Page 51

Sadberge & Middleton St
5,074 Stockton West
George **
* Proposed renaming of constituency to Newton Aycliffe & Sedgefield
** Electors from Darlington Borough Council

Page 52

County Council

Agenda Item 9

14 July 2021
Appointment of Independent Persons to
the Standards Committee

Report of Corporate Management Team
Paul Darby, Corporate Director of Resources and Helen Lynch,
Head of Legal & Democratic Services
Electoral division(s) affected:
None.

Purpose of the Report
1

To invite Council to appoint two new Independent Persons to the
Standards Committee.

Executive summary
2

Durham County Council has two Independent Persons who are
appointed in accordance with the Localism Act 2011. The Independent
Persons were appointed in 2012 and their term was extended in
November 2016 for a further four years.

3

The recruitment exercise for the appointment of Independent Persons
was due to take place in advance of the expiry of the term of office with
appointments to be approved by full Council. Following the cancellation
of Council meetings in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic
neither the Standards Committee or Council had the opportunity to
consider or approve the recruitment of two Independent Persons in
advance of the expiry of their term of office.

4

The Corporate Director of Resources, exercising delegated powers
extended the term of office of the Independent Persons until 21
September 2021. This decision was taken in consultation with the Chair
and Vice Chair of the Standards Committee as well as the Head of
Legal & Democratic Services. The decision was reported at the full
Council meeting on 21 October 2020.

5

At its meeting on 20 January 2021, Council approved a recruitment
exercise with a view to appointing two new Independent Persons.
Council also agreed to amend the term of office for the Independent
Persons to a fixed term of two years with the option of extending for a

Page 53

maximum of a further two years. This change is in line with good
practice identified by the Committee for Standards in Public Life.
6

This report summarises the recruitment exercise undertaken and
recommends that two new independent persons to the Standards
Committee are appointed with effect from 22 September 2021.

Recommendation
7

Page 54

Council is recommended:
(a)

To formally record its thanks to John Dixon Dawson and Peter
Jackson for their service as Independent Persons to the
Standards Committee since their appointment in 2016.

(b)

To appoint Alan Fletcher and Kayleigh Louise Wilkinson as
Independent Persons to the Standards Committee with effect
from 22 September 2021 for a term of two years.

(c)

Delegate authority to the Standards Committee to consider
whether to extend the appointment of the Independent Persons
for a further two years in 2023 and that any such extension will be
reported to Council as part of the annual report of the Standards
Committee.

Background
8

The Localism Act 2011 sets out the requirements in relation to Local
Government Standards and it requires the appointment by the authority
of at least one Independent Person.

9

The functions of the Independent Person in relation to Standards are:
 They must be consulted by the authority and their views taken into
account before it makes a finding as to whether a member has failed
to comply with the Code of Conduct or decides on action to be taken
in respect to that member.
 They may be consulted by the authority in respect of a Standards
complaint at any other stage and;
 They may be consulted by a member or co-opted member of the
Council or a parish council against whom the complaint has been
made.

10

The role of the Independent Person was widened under the Local
Authority’s (Standing Orders) England (Amendment) Regulations 2015.
In the case of proposed disciplinary action against a statutory officer,
the Council is required to invite the Independent Persons who have
been appointed for the purposes of the Members Code of Conduct
regime to form an independent panel and take into account any
recommendation of that panel before taking a decision to discipline or
dismiss.

11

On 20 January 2021, Council considered a report, which set out
proposals to recruit two new Independent Persons to the Standards
Committee. The report also sought to amend the term of office of
Independent Persons to two years, with the option to extend up to a
maximum of a further two years in accordance with best practice as
identified by the Committee in Standards in Public Life.

Recruitment Process
12

In January 2021, Council approved the following indicative recruitment
timetable:
Advert for the appointment of Independent
Persons placed in the local press and on
the Council website.

1 February 2021

Page 55

Closing date for applications and
shortlisting
Interviews conducted by the Head of Legal
and Democratic Services (Monitoring
Officer), the Deputy Monitoring Officer and
the Chair of the Standards Committee
Report to Council seeking approval of
proposed appointments
Report to Standards Committee confirming
appointment

26 March 2021

21 April 2021

July 2021
September 2021

13

The roles were advertised in the Northern Echo on 3 February 2021 and
on the Council’s website on 18 February 2021. The roles were also
promoted on the Council’s social media pages on 18 and 19 February
2021. Seven applications were received and the Panel decided to
shortlist all seven candidates. Interviews took place on 21 and 23 April
2021. A copy of the role profile and person specification are attached at
Appendix 2 for information.

14

The candidates were asked a series of questions to test their suitability
for the role against the criteria set out in the person specification and
each had a general discussion about local government ethical
standards.

15

The Panel decided to recommend Alan Foster and Kayleigh Louise
Wilkinson for appointment as Independent Persons to the Standards
Committee. Both candidates demonstrated that they met the criteria for
the role, had a good understanding of the role and an enthusiasm to
support the Standards Committee in upholding high ethical standards.

16

Subject to Council approving their appointment, the Independent
Persons will be appointed for a two-year term commencing on 22
September 2021. It is proposed that Council delegates authority to the
Standards Committee to consider whether to extend the appointments
for a further two years in 2023. If the Committee decides to extend the
appointments, this could be reported to Council as part of the
Committee’s annual report. In the event that the Committee decide not
to extend the term, Council will be asked to approve a fresh recruitment
exercise.

17

Once appointed, the Independent Persons will be invited to induction
training with the Monitoring Officer and also the Standards Committee.
There will be an expectation that the Independent Persons attend at
least two meetings of the Standards Committee a year.

Page 56

Background papers
 None

Other useful documents
 None

Author
Helen Lynch

Tel: 03000 269732

Page 57

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
Section 28 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Council to appoint at least
one Independent Person.
Finance
The role of Independent Person is not remunerated. However, the Council will
reimburse reasonably incurred travel and subsistence expenses. Where
appropriate, the Council will pay for the Independent Persons to attend
training. These costs are met from the Legal and Democratic Services budget.
Consultation
The Chair of the Standards Committee participated in the shortlisting and
interview of the recruitment process.
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
The recruitment exercise was conducted in accordance with the Council’s
recruitment arrangements in relation to equality and diversity to ensure
fairness.
Climate Change
None.
Human Rights
The role of Independent Person helps to ensure that complaints against
Members and disciplinary proceedings against Statutory Officers are dealt
with fairly.
Crime and Disorder
None.
Staffing
None.
Accommodation
None.
Risk
There is a legal requirement to have a minimum of one Independent Person.
Should no Independent Person be appointed the Council is at risk of legal
challenge for not complying with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.
Procurement
None.

Page 58

Appendix 2: Role Profile and Person Specification

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT
2011

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Durham County Council is a democratically elected assembly of 126 Members,
known as Councillors. They are accountable to the people of County Durham for the
efficient and effective provisions of a wide range of public services.
The County Council represents and promotes the interests of the people of County
Durham at local, regional and national level.
Elections to the County Council are normally held every four years and the next
elections are scheduled for May 2021.
The Councils powers and responsibilities are determined by Parliament.

The Council's Structure
The Council’s decision making structure includes:


A Cabinet of ten Councillors, which meets on a monthly basis to make
decisions to implement the Council’s policies and budgets;



The full Council of 126 Councillors is responsible for approving the budget
and policy framework, adopting and changing the Council’s Constitution,
appointing the Leader of the Council, appointing Chairs and Vice-Chairs,
Committees and members to outside bodies. It is also a forum for general
debate and recognising achievements and outstanding service



A Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Management Board and its Committees,
which can scrutnise and monitor decisions taken by Cabinet;



Regulatory Committees responsible for functions such as planning,
highways, licensing and standards.

Page 59

Ethical Framework - The Standards Committee
The Localism Act 2011 provides the framework intended to secure high standards of
conduct in public office. It requires the County Council to appoint at least one
Independent Person who will be consulted on alleged breaches of the Members
Code of Conduct for Members of the Council as well as Members of Town and
Parish Councils within County Durham.
The Independent Person may also be consulted on allegations referred to the
Monitoring Officer in deciding whether to investigate. Members who are the subject
of complaints are also entitled to seek the views of the Independent Person. The
Independent Person is not however a member of the Council or its Committees. The
Standards Committee has delegated to the Monitoring Officer the initial handling of
complaints which can then be referred to the Standards Hearing Panel where
appropriate.
The role of the Independent person will be important to the public's perception of the
effectiveness of the Standards Committee and the maintenance of high standards of
conduct, and it is very important that such members are seen to be genuinely
independent of the County Council and any of its Town and Parish Councils.
The functions of the Independent Person in relation to Standards are:


They must be consulted by the Monitoring Officer and/or the Standards
Committee and their views considered before it makes a finding as to
whether a member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct or
decides on action to be taken in respect to that member.



They may be consulted by the Monitoring Officer and/or the Standards
Committee in respect of a Standards complaint at any other stage.



They may be consulted by a member or co-opted member of the Council
or a parish council against whom the complaint has been made.

The Council is also required to consider the recommendations of the Independent
Person before taking a decision to discipline or dismiss one of the Council’s
Statutory Officers.
Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer to Durham County
Council

Page 60

INDEPENDENT PERSON
PERSONAL REQUIREMENTS

In view of the nature of the role the law restricts eligibility to certain persons. Please
take into account the restrictions set out below.

CATEGORY

ESSENTIAL

Education



A good general level of education,
sufficient to enable the member to
deal with relevant paperwork and
discussions.

Work
Experience

Skills,
Knowledge
and Aptitude



Ability to analyse complex issues in a
logical way, and to arrive at practical
ethical solutions.

Personal
attributes



Must display the highest standards of
integrity and conduct.

Motivation



Must have a firm belief in the
importance of public services to the
community.



Must have a firm belief in the
importance of high standards of
conduct to the successful
achievement of the Council’s
objectives.



Must not be a member, co-opted
member or officer of Durham County
Council or of a Town or Parish
Council within County Durham and
must not have held such a position
within the previous five years.



Must not be related to, or a close
friend of, a member, co-opted
member or officer of Durham County
Council or of a Town or Parish
Council within Durham.

Restrictions

DESIRABLE



Experience within a
similar role that has
involved the promotion of
high ethical standards.



Knowledge of relevant
public services.

Page 61

The Independent Person will be required to attend at least two meetings of the
Standards Committee a year and be available by telephone and email for
consultation on complaints. There is also a requirement to attend training periodically
to ensure continuing competence for the role.

Page 62

Agenda Item 10

County Council
14 July 2021
Appointments to the Business Durham
Advisory Board

Report of Corporate Management Team
Amy Harhoff Corporate Director of Regeneration Economy and
Growth
Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Electoral division(s) affected:
None.

Purpose of the Report
1

To agree appointments to the Business Durham Advisory Board.

Executive Summary
2

The Business Durham Advisory Board acts in an advisory capacity to
provide a partnership of private sector and political membership to
inform the Council’s business support services delivered through the
Council’s Business Durham Service, which is part of the Regeneration
Economy and Growth Directorate.

3

On the 26 May, the Council considered a report proposing a number of
appointments to Joint Bodies and Other Bodies for the current municipal
year. The report noted that 7 members are appointed to the Business
Durham Advisory Board by the County Council. In previous years, 6 of
the positions have been appointed to from the largest group, with the
second largest group appointing the final member.

4

The members from the largest group have traditionally included:
(a) The Chair of the Council;
(b) The Leader of the Council;
(c)

The Deputy Leader of the Council; and

(d) The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Economic Regeneration and
Cabinet member for Housing and Assets.

Page 63

(e) Climate change lead
5

For consistency it’s proposed that the membership remains with the
thematic and cabinet portfolios as per the previous year meaning 6
members from the joint administration groups of the Council. There will
also be a place for the leader from the opposition group, it is however
also proposed that the leader of the opposition is now afforded a
nominated deputy for in the event of an issue with availability.

Recommendation(s)
6

Council is recommended to:
(a) Appoint the Chair of the Council, the Leader of the Council, the
Deputy Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for
Economy and Partnerships and the portfolio holder for Housing
and Assets and to the Business Durham Advisory Board for the
municipal year 21/22.
(b) To appoint the Cabinet member for Neighbourhoods and Climate
to support on the wider and strategic linkages between climate
change and business for the municipal year 21/22.
(c)

Page 64

To appoint the leader of the Labour Group to the board for the
municipal year 21/22 and include a provision for an official named
deputy for if the leader of the Labour Group is not available.

Background
7

8

The role of the Business Durham Advisory Board, which meets
quarterly, is as follows:


To provide advice on the core functions of Business Durham and
support the council’s activity through our Business Durham Service
particularly in regard to its targets and objectives as outlined in the
business plan.



To provide a focus for and influence on Durham County Council
economic policy and strategy and proposals as they relate to
Business Durham operations, through acting as a critical friend.



Offer a broad public and private sector perspective to the Councils
activities through Business Durham and to promote our services
and activity externally.



To offer insight through experience into the business world and the
global economy



To act as champions and ambassadors for County Durham
businesses and its economy

The board is an advisory board however the Council particularly values
the input from key private sector businesses to act as the voice on
business when shaping our business support services. The Advisory
Board is therefore constituted from three groups:


Durham County Council elected members, appointed by the
Council



Private sector business representatives



Key business-related stakeholders and groups, e.g., North East
England Chamber of Commerce (NEECC), Department for
International Trade (DIT), County Durham Enterprise Agencies.

Background papers


None

Other useful documents


None

Author(s)
James Etherington

Tel: 03000 269727

Page 65

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
None.

Finance
None.

Consultation
None.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
None.

Climate Change
None.

Human Rights
None.

Crime and Disorder
None.

Staffing
None.

Accommodation
None.

Risk
None.

Procurement
None.

Page 66

Agenda Item 11

Full Council
14 July 2021
County Durham Youth Justice Plan
2021 – 2022
Ordinary Decision

Report of Corporate Management Team
John Pearce, Corporate Director of Children & Young People’s
Services
Councillor Ted Henderson, Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Children
and Young People’s Service
Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1

This report presents the Youth Justice Plan 2021/22 for information and
comment and highlights some of the key achievements in reducing reoffending during 2020/21 along with areas for improvement which the
service will focus on during the next year.

Executive summary
2

Production of a Youth Justice Plan is a statutory requirement of the
Local Authority under the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 and is one of the
requirements of the Youth Justice Board (YJB) grant we receive. The
plan had to be submitted to the YJB by 30 June 2021 and it provided
detailed guidance on the headings within the plan and the areas to be
covered within each heading which we have followed. Essentially, the
plan is in two parts. Firstly, a review of performance and activity for
2020-2021 and secondly, improvement plans, staffing and budgets for
2021-2022.

Key Achievements 2020/21
Performance against National Outcome Measures 2020/21:
3

Please note that the data for the national outcome measures is
produced by the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) and for both First Time

Page 67

Entrants (FTEs) and Re-offending is based on data taken from the
Police National Computer (PNC). Due to revised priorities at the MoJ
as a result of the Covid19 pandemic, PNC data has not been available
and therefore the figures are more historical than would otherwise be
the case.
(a)

First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System (FTEs)
Between January and December 2019, the rate of FTEs per
100,000 10-17 years population in County Durham was 179,
which is lower than both the England rate (208) and that of the
North East Region as a whole (274).

(b)

Re-offending
MoJ data (Cohort derived January to December 2018) shows a
re-offending rate of 39.2% which is a reduction of 10.6
percentage points compared to the previous year (49.8%). This
rate is marginally higher than both the National and North East
rate of 38.4% but shows a much greater rate of improvement.

(c)

Use of Custody
Custodial Sentences:
County Durham Youth Justice Service (CDYJS) performance has
seen a big reduction in the last two years compared with previous
years with a rate 0.18 per 1,000 10-17 year olds during January–
December 2020 (compared with 0.42 in 2018). This is marginally
higher than both the National and North East averages with rates
of 0.14 and 0.16 respectively. On each occasion a young person
is sentenced to custody, the work of CDYJS is reviewed to ensure
all appropriate work was undertaken.
Remand Bed Nights: 92
This is a 69% reduction on the previous year (295 nights). The
92 nights relates to just 4 young people, all of whom ultimately
resulted in custodial sentences.

Work with Victims, including Young Victims
4

Page 68

Our work with victims of youth crime in 2020/21 has engaged a further
137 victims (both adults and young people) in restorative approaches.
Our work with young people who are the victims of youth crime has
provided dedicated support and an opportunity to re-build and restore
confidence. The support group for young victims of all crime (‘With
Youth in Mind’) has continued to develop and is now working with an

average of around 35 young people at any one time throughout the
year. Young people who offend have also engaged in 1,366 hours of
unpaid work in and across communities in County Durham as a means
of reparation.

Targeting those young people committing the most offences
5

The service has continued to prioritise our work with young people who
are persistently offending. The Service operates an enhanced,
intensive, case management model for this cohort of young people.
Each case is reviewed monthly by a panel chaired by the YJS Manager.
The service has developed, in conjunction with CAMHS & CYPS, a
trauma recovery model of enhanced case management for this cohort of
young people. Monitoring of this work has continued to show that whilst
significant reductions in offending are sometimes difficult to achieve, it is
possible to have a meaningful impact in reducing both the frequency
and seriousness of offending.

Covid-19 Pandemic
6

Like all services, CDYJS has operated under the national requirements
of lockdown because of the Covid19 pandemic. As a result of this, we
developed new operating procedures and monitoring arrangements,
based on the level of risk presented by young people (both harm to
others and vulnerability), to take account of lockdown and social
distancing. From March 2020, we operated with the strategic approach
of ‘we will undertake all the same things as before. How we do them
will be different’. This ensured that we carried out our role safely, for
young people, families, communities and staff, and continued to
undertake our full range of statutory duties.

Recommendation(s)
7

Full Council is recommended to:
(a)

note the contents of this report;

(b)

receive the Youth Justice Plan 2021/22 and performance
summary for the period 2020/21.

Page 69

Background
8

Youth Offending Teams (referred to, in County Durham as ‘Youth
Justice Service’) are statutory partnerships, established under the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998, with the principal aim of preventing
offending by children and young people. Local authorities are
responsible for establishing a Youth Offending Team. Police, the
Probation Service and Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) are
statutorily required to assist in their funding and operation.

9

Local authorities continue to have a statutory duty to submit an annual
youth justice plan relating to their provision of youth justice services.
Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 sets out the youth
offending partnership’s responsibilities in producing this plan. It states
that it is the duty of each local authority, after consultation with the
partner agencies, to formulate and implement an annual youth justice
plan, setting out:
(a)

how youth justice services in their area are to be provided and
funded;

(b)

how the YOS will be composed and funded, how it will operate,
and what functions it will carry out.

10

This current plan covers performance for the period 2020/21 and
provides service budgets, operational and strategic developments within
the service and partnership, service structure and the Service
Improvement Plan for 2021 – 2022.

11

In accordance with statutory requirements, the plan was placed before
CDYJS Management Board on 21 June 2021 where it was approved.

12

The Youth Justice Plan must be submitted to the Youth Justice Board
for England and Wales (YJB) and published in accordance with the
directions of the Secretary of State. The deadline for submission this
year was 30 June 2021. After submission to the YJB, Youth Justice
Plans are sent to Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP - lead
for YOS inspections) and are placed in the House of Commons library.

Youth Justice Plan 2021 - 2022
13

A copy of the updated Youth Justice Plan is attached as Appendix 2.

14

The Plan outlines how CDYJS will:

Page 70



reduce First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System;



reduce re-offending by young people;


15

16

reduce the use of custody for both sentenced and remanded young
people.

We are seeking to do this through:
(a)

improving the interventions we complete with young people;

(b)

improving the quality of our assessments and plans;

(c)

targeting our resources on those young people committing the
most offences;

(d)

ensuring that we listen and respond to what young people and
their families are telling us;

(e)

continuing to improve our work with victims – both adults and
young people;

(f)

ensuring that volunteering, by both adults and young people, is a
key component of the work we do with young people and victims;

(g)

ensuring that case management systems and administration
support provides the highest quality support to staff and
managers in the delivery of services to courts, communities,
victims, families and young people.

HMI Probation is currently three years into a five-year inspection cycle.
CDYJS and partnership are yet to be inspected under the current cycle.
An updated inspection framework for Youth Offending Services was
published in May 2021, which sets clear standards expected of YOTs,
to ensure the provision of a high quality, personalised and responsive
service for all children and young people. Whilst there are many
aspects of good performance contained within the current plan, the
service is not complacent and is fully aware of the areas where practice
needs to change, and performance improve. We are also mindful of the
impact of COVID on our services, partner agencies, young people and
families. We have completed a robust, detailed self-assessment
against the published inspection standards. This work has informed our
ongoing quality improvement plans and the Service Improvement Plan
for 2021/22.

Background papers


None.

Author
Dave Summers, YJS Manager

Tel: 03000 265999

Page 71

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
The Youth Justice Plan ensures Durham County Council and statutory
partners meet their legal implications to the partnership. Statutory
requirements placed on the YOS and the Management Board include:
complying with the statutory requirements laid out in s.38 to 40 of the Crime
and Disorder Act 1998, and other relevant sections of the Act; complying with
National Standards for Youth Justice (including returning the annual National
Standards audit); submitting required data to the YJB in adherence with the
relevant YJB data recording guidance and approving the annual Youth Justice
Plan.

Finance
The Youth Justice Plan contains CDYJS partnership pooled budget and staff
secondment arrangements for 2021/22. CDYJS budget comprises
partnership funding, YJB funding and specific grant funding. The budget
allocation is reviewed annually by CDYJS Management Board and all partners
(Police, Probation, Health (CCGs) and Local Authority) agree funding
contributions for the following year. Under the terms of the Crime & Disorder
Act 1998; DCC, Durham Constabulary, the Probation Service and CCGs are
required to both contribute staff and provide funding for a pooled budget for
operating costs. The total budget for CDYJS for 2021/22 is £2,860,870. The
total budget for CDYJS includes the cost of staff seconded/deployed to
CDYJS from partners.

Consultation
CDYJS Management Board, partners, staff, young people and parents/carers
have been consulted in updating the Youth Justice Plan. The new portfolio
holder for CYPS is a co-signatory of the plan and has been briefed on the
related inspection requirements for this service area.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
CDYJS is committed to meeting the needs of the young people, families and
victims with whom we work. All staff have undertaken specialist diversity
training for youth offending, speech, language and communication needs
training and, in addition, case managers have undertaken specialist diversity
training for assessments. Diversity issues are a specific category on the
checklist used by managers to countersign assessments and intervention
plans.

Page 72

Climate Change
None.

Human Rights
Not applicable.

Crime and Disorder
The statutory function of CDYJS partnership is the prevention of offending by
children and young people (Crime and Disorder Act 1998). The Youth Justice
Plan provides detail on how the partnership will undertake those functions.

Staffing
Staff establishment is included in the plan, in line with YJB requirements.

Accommodation
All managers and staff in CDYJS have their main base in DCC, Crook.

Risk
Risks to future delivery have been considered and are included in the plan.

Procurement
Not applicable.

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

County Durham Youth
Justice Plan
2021 – 2022

1

Page 75

Foreword
I am pleased to present the updated Youth Justice Plan for 2021-2022. This plan is a
statutory requirement of Local Authorities and is in two parts. The first part of the
plan provides information about the performance of County Durham Youth Justice
Service (CDYJS) and Partnership during 2020-2021; whilst the second part details
the plans in-place to ensure that the service continues to deliver a high, and
continually improving, level of service for 2021-2022.
No review of the previous year can be complete without recognising the
unprecedented impact of Covid19 on the lives of the young people with whom we
work, their families, communities, our staff and partner agencies. Consultation with
our service users and staff shows that CDYJS responded positively and sensitively
to the needs of all partners to ensure that we continued to deliver a high quality,
effective service, despite the varying restrictions in place at different times. It is
important for me to place on record the thanks of the Management Board to the staff
of the service for their resilience and determination to meet the needs of young
people and victims throughout the year, and the way young people and their families
rose to the challenges presented.
It is, therefore, all the more pleasing to be able to highlight the continued
improvements in performance against the three national measures – Rate of First
Time Entrants to the criminal justice system; Rate of Re-offending; and Rate of
Custody Use. These improvements in performance mean that the lives of young
people who offend, and their families, are made better, there are less offences
committed (and consequently less victims created) and victims of youth offending
feel listened to and supported.
The quality of the work and innovation of the service continues to be recognised
nationally. The Service was awarded a Children & Young People Now Award earlier
in the year for our work with parents of young people who offend. In addition, the
Service was reaccredited as an ‘Investor in Children’ and an ‘Investor in Volunteers’.
The second part of the plan shows that the service, and just as importantly our wider
partnership, is not complacent and continues to strive to improve. As a management
board we feel the plan clearly lays out our priorities as we seek to drive forward
continued positive change, particularly as the service steers its way along the
roadmap to recovery from the Covid19 restrictions. It is my firm belief that the service
is well placed to ensure successful outcomes to the plans laid out.
Finally, I would like to pay tribute to the work of numerous partners, represented
through the CDYJS Management Board, who provide expertise, skills and hard work
to ensure that the service is well resourced, responsive and is able to continue to
deliver high quality services.
Martyn Stenton
Chair of CDYJS Management Board
1

Page 76

Contents
Executive Summary

Page 4

Our Key Achievements

Page4

Introduction

Page 11

County Durham Youth Justice Service

Page 12

Structure and Governance

Page 13

Resources and Value for Money

Page 16

Service and Staffing Structure

Page 19

The Voice of Young People

Page 20

National Recognition

Page22

Road Map out of Covid 19 Lockdown

Page 23

2

Page 77

Appendices
Appendix 1

CDYJS Management Board Approval of Strategic Plan

Page 24

Appendix 2

Review of Performance against Key Indicators

Page 25

Appendix 3

County Durham Youth Justice Service Budget 2021/22

Page 29

Appendix 4

Service Improvement Plan 2021/22

Page 30

Appendix 5
Page 33

CDYJS Service Structure 2021
Appendix 6

Page 34

CDYJS Statutory Functions
Appendix 7

Page 36

Glossary
Appendix 8

Page 39

Contact Details

3

Page 78

Executive summary
The Youth Justice Plan 2021/22 highlights work done to date, and key achievements
and outcomes for 2020/21. It outlines key priorities, budget, staffing, service
developments and the service improvement plan for 2021/22.
Please note that the data for the national outcome measures is produced by the
Ministry of Justice (MoJ) and for both First Time Entrants (FTEs) and Re-offending
are based on data taken from the Police National Computer (PNC). Due to revised
priorities at the MoJ due to the Covid19 pandemic, PNC data has not been available
and therefore the figures are more historical than would otherwise be the case.

Our Key Achievements
1. National Outcome Measures 2020/21
Reducing First Time Entrants (FTEs) to the Youth Justice
System
Between January and December 2019, the rate of FTEs per 100,000 10-17
years population in County Durham was 179, which is lower than both the
England rate (208) and that of the North East Region as a whole (274).

Reducing Re-offending
MoJ data (January to December 2018) shows a re-offending rate of 39.2%
which is a reduction of 10.6 percentage points compared to the previous year
(49.8%). This rate is marginally higher than both the National and North East
rate of 38.4% but shows a much greater rate of improvement.

Reducing the Use of Custody
Custodial Sentences
County Durham Youth Justice System (CDYJS) performance has seen a big
reduction in the last two years compared with previous years with a rate 0.18
per 1,000 10-17 year olds during January– December 2020 (compared with
0.42 in 2018).This is marginally higher than both the National and North East
averages with rates of 0.14 and 0.16 respectively. On each occasion a young
person is sentenced to custody, the work of CDYJS is reviewed to ensure all
appropriate work was undertaken.
Remand Bed Nights: 92
This is a 69% reduction on the previous year (295 nights). The 92 nights relates
to just 4 young people, all of whom ultimately resulted in custodial sentences.
Appendix 2 provides more details to illustrate the above information.
4

Page 79

2. Work with victims, including young victims
Our work with the victims of youth crime in 2020/21
has engaged a further 137 victims in restorative
approaches. In particular, our work with young
people who are the victims of youth crime has
provided dedicated support and an opportunity
to re-build and restore confidence. The support
group for young victims of all crime (‘With Youth
in Mind’) has continued to develop and is now
working with an average of around 35 young
people at any one time throughout the year.
Young people who offend have also engaged in
1366 hours of unpaid work in and across
communities in County Durham as a means of
reparation.

3. Targeting those young people committing the most
offences
The service has continued to prioritise our work with young people who are
persistently offending. The Service operates an enhanced, intensive, case
management model for this cohort of young people. Each case is reviewed
monthly by a panel chaired by the YJS Manager. The service has developed, in
conjunction with CAMHS & CYPS, a trauma recovery model of enhanced case
management for this cohort of young people. Monitoring of this work has
continued to show that whilst significant reductions in offending are sometimes
difficult to achieve, it is possible to have a meaningful impact in reducing both
the frequency and seriousness of offending.
5

Page 80

4. Covid 19 Pandemic
Like all services, CDYJS has operated under the national requirements of
lockdown because of the Covid19 pandemic. As a result of this, we developed
new operating procedures and monitoring arrangements, based on the level of
risk presented by young people (both harm to others and vulnerability), to take
account of lockdown and social distancing. From March 2020, we operated with
the strategic approach of ‘we will undertake all the same things as before. How
we do them will be different’. This ensured that we carried out our role safely,
for young people, families, communities and staff, and continued to undertake
our full range of statutory duties.
The work carried out during 2020/21 which has supported our Key Achievements
has been:

Reducing First Time Entrants (FTEs)
 Developed and introduced the VISIT Programme (Early intervention
programme for children who come to the attention of the Police for violence
for the first time). The programme is funded by the Youth Endowment Fund.
 Introduced a new assessment process that allows us to collate data on young
people who offend for the first time
 Embedded a review process, with Durham Constabulary, for out of court
decision making involving a community member
 Developed a suit of intervention programmes that can be delivered remotely
 Introduced new monitoring/data arrangements as a result of changes in
practice due to lockdown
 Ensured greater coordination between ‘on-street’ restorative
approaches by police and CDYJS interventions
 Developed the use of video for
communicating with young people,
including the provision of laptops.

6

Page 81

Reducing Re-offending
 Developed methods of working with young people remotely – provision of
laptops, development of special interventions to be delivered remotely
 Provided training for staff to assist them in undertaking assessments and
deliver interventions remotely
 Developed and implemented a model of assessing level of risk and designing
approach, taking into account lockdown, to supervision of each young person
 Provided training to staff in elements of assessments, based on findings from
quality assurance processes
 Amended our process for consulting with young people to take account of
lockdown
 Re-applied for, and were successful, with Investing in Children status which
helps us to ensure we listen to voices of young people and that their opinions
influence our decisions
 Increased and improved the psychology/emotional wellbeing input from the
County Durham Clinical Commissioning Group
 Reviewed, amended and launched new multi-agency Harmful Sexual
Behaviour (HSB) procedures on behalf of Durham Safeguarding Children
Partnership
 Provided over 20 multi-agency briefings on the HSB procedures
 Improved links with the multi-agency safeguarding hub
 Procured a new case management database for the Service for
implementation during 2021/22.

Reducing Use of Custody
 Maintained the panel review process for young people who receive custodial
sentences
 Reviewed our processes for resettlement of young people from custody
following recommendations from HMIP thematic inspection
 Maintained a six day per week service, including experienced court officers
available for Saturdays and Bank Holiday special courts
 Maintained dedicated management cover for a six days per week service.
 Researched and reviewed the use of breach and resentencing to ensure it
provides the highest quality service to courts and to young people
 Took the lead in the development of a regional approach to quality auditing for
cases.
7

Page 82

Work with Victims, including Young Victims
 Developed a service level agreement with the Office of the
Police, Crime & Victim Commissioner for the
delivery of services to victims, including young
people
 Undertook research into take-up of services by
victims and developed a new suite of
measures for monitoring performance
 Developed a programme for parents who are
victims of their child’s offending which can be
delivered remotely
 Developed new process, based on remote
support, for working with victims, including young
people, during lockdown
 Continued to deliver personal development training for the young mentors
 Won a C&YP Now National Award for our services to parents
who are victims of the children’s offending/actions
 Improved the range of volunteering opportunities and the link
between wider service volunteering opportunities and the young
mentors/leaders
 Increased the use of community volunteers in working with victims and young
people
 Continued to develop the roles for volunteers in the service, including
considerable expansion of the Independent Visitor programme to now total 40
volunteers and provide mentoring for 40 looked after young people despite
the restrictions of lockdown
 Delivering 1366 hours of court ordered reparation/ unpaid work in
communities, despite lockdown.

8

Page 83

Targeting those young people committing the most offences
 Reviewed (with colleagues from York University), improved and relaunched
the Enhanced Case Management (trauma recovery) Programme
 Amended the panel process for reviewing cases of young people who are the
most persistent offenders
 Undertook a quality audit of practice with this cohort of young people and
developed and implemented an improvement plan.

Response to the Covid19 Pandemic
 Categorised all young people & victims we worked with into two groups –
‘High Risk of Harm and/or Vulnerability’ and ‘Standard Risk of Harm and/or
Vulnerability’.
 Continued to provide face-to-face home visits (doorstep) for all people in the
High-Risk Group.
 Undertook video intervention sessions for all people in the Standard Group.
 Worked with colleagues, both nationally and locally, in developing safe ways
to conduct court hearings.
 Worked with Police colleagues to develop safe ways to conduct Police
interviews with young people requiring us to act as ‘Appropriate Adult’.
 Designed a suite of interventions, specifically designed for delivery with young
people remotely.
 Designed a suite of reparation tasks for young people to carry out at home.
 Implemented daily management team meetings via Microsoft Teams.
 Developed and implemented a CDYJS communication strategy.
 Developed and implemented performance indicators to manage performance
under ‘lockdown’.
 Undertook surveys of staff and young people to find their views on our
approach to lockdown and amended how we worked based on the feedback
 Worked with colleagues in Durham County Council to ensure the appropriate
provision of laptops for young people, including young victims.

9

Page 84

In 2021/22 we will seek to:



 Maintain the low level of First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice
System;

 Reduce re-offending by young people;




 Reduce the use of custody for both sentenced and remanded young
people.

By:
Further improving the interventions we complete with young people and the
quality of our assessments and plans
Target our resources on those young people committing the most offences
Ensuring that we listen and respond to what young people and their families
are telling us
Continue to improve our work with victims – both adults and young people
Ensuring that volunteering, by both adults and young people, is a key
component of the work we do with young people and victims
Ensuring that case management systems and administration support provides
the highest quality support to staff and managers in the delivery of services to
courts, communities, victims, families and young people.
See Appendix 4 (Service Improvement Plan 2021/22) for more detail.

10

Page 85

Introduction
Youth Offending Teams – referred to in County Durham as County Durham Youth
Justice Service - are statutory partnerships, established under the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998, with the principal aim of preventing offending by children and
young people. Local Authorities are responsible for establishing a Youth Offending
Team within their area. Police, National Probation Service and Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) are statutorily required to assist in their funding and
operation.
Local authorities continue to have a statutory duty to submit an annual youth justice
plan relating to their provision of youth justice services. This is covered by Section 40
of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 which states that each local authority, after
consultation with partner agencies, must formulate and implement a statutory annual
youth justice plan setting out:



 How the Youth Justice Service (YJS) will be composed and funded,
how it will operate, and what functions it will carry out.

Statutory requirements placed on the service and the Management Board include:
Complying with the requirements laid out in s.38 to 40 of the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998, and other relevant sections of the Act;
Complying with National Standards for Youth Justice (including returning an
annual audit);
Submitting required data to the YJB; and
Ensuring appropriate methods are used to transfer data within the youth
justice system.

11

Page 86

County Durham Youth Justice Service
County Durham Youth Justice Service (CDYJS), a statutory multi-agency
partnership, is part of Children and Young People’s Services, Durham County
Council, and is managed by them on behalf of the partnership. Active links are
maintained at both strategic and operational level to Criminal Justice, Community
Safety and Children, Young People and Families arenas.

Strategic Purpose of CDYJS
 To prevent re-offending by children and young people;






 How the Youth Justice Service (YJS) will be composed and funded,
how it will operate, and what functions it will carry out.

 To be achieved by delivering specialist interventions;

 Underpinned by safeguarding and public protection

12

Page 87

Structure and Governance
Governance – Management Board
CDYJS is accountable to a multi-agency Management Board, chaired by the Head of
Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children, Children and Young People’s
Services, Durham County Council. The membership and terms of reference of the
Management Board are reviewed annually. Membership is at appropriate Senior
Officer level.
The Management Board consists of:
Children and Young People’s Services, Durham County Council (DCC) Chair;
Clinical Commissioning Group – Deputy Chair
Durham Constabulary;
The Probation Service;
Progression Team, DCC;
Office of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner (OPCVC);
Public Health, DCC;
SEND and Inclusion, Education and Children’s Social Care, DCC;
Equality & Strategy, DCC.
Membership of the Board is regularly reviewed and each year the Board participates
in an annual development session where it analyses its structure and functions and
develops an improvement plan. The last development session was undertaken in
March 2021.
Members of the management board are also members of a range of other
partnerships relevant to the work of CDYJS. Board members are required to ensure
that they represent the views of CDYJS in those partnerships as well as their home
agency. During the annual development session, board members consider how this
can best be achieved and what support they require to undertake this role.
The YJS Manager and Chair of the Management Board provide regular formal
reports and updates to many of the partnerships to enable them to monitor
performance and contribute to the improvement of services for young people who
offend, their families and victims. In addition, Durham County Council’s Safer and
13

Page 88

Stronger Scrutiny Committee also monitor performance against the three national
outcome measures and receive annual presentations from both the YJS Manager
and Chair of the Board on current performance and progress against the Youth
Justice Plan.

Governance – Durham County Council
CDYJS is line-managed, on behalf of the Management Board, by Durham County
Council. The Service is part of Early Help, Inclusion and Vulnerable Children Service
(EHIVCS), Children and Young Peoples Directorate. The Head of EHIVC is the Chair
of CDYJS Management Board and the line manager of CDYJS Manager.
EHIVC is comprised of the following services:
One Point (Early Help, Prevention and Think Family Services)
CDYJS
Aycliffe Secure Services
SEND & Inclusion Services.
In addition, the CDYJS Manager attends regular joint meetings with all managers
from Children’s Social Care and managers from Education. This allows for joined up
services, planning and development.
CDYJS is currently a member of the following strategic partnerships and also
the sub-groups of these partnerships:


Children and Families Partnership



Safe Durham Partnership (SDP)



Durham Safeguarding Children Partnership (DSCP)



Local Criminal Justice Partnership (LCJP)



Strategic MAPPA Board



Children & Young People Mental Health Partnership



Care Leavers Steering Group



Child Exploitation Group



Integrated Offender Management Strategic Group



Prevention and Early Help Partnership



Preventing Reoffending Group



Integrated Community Care Group
14

Page 89



Strategy & Commissioning Group for Housing Offenders



Integrated Commissioning Team

In addition, CDYJS is represented on numerous other partnerships by members of
the Management Board. This helps to ensure that the needs of young people who
offend and the victims of those offences are therefore included in all relevant
strategies and plans.

Agencies Staffing CDYJS
The following agencies/services deploy or second staff to CDYJS:
Durham County Council
Durham Constabulary
The Probation Service
Tees, Esk & Wear Valley NHS Foundation Trust (Funded by CCG)
Harrogate & District NHS Foundation Trust (Funded by Public Health)
Humankind (Funded by Public Health)
North Tees & Hartlepool Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (Funded by CCG).

15

Page 90

Resources and Value for Money
CDYJS is committed to the following principles:






 Prioritising front line delivery and core services to young people,
families, victims and communities

 Continuous quality improvement to improve practice with and
outcomes for young people, victims, and communities

 Ensuring young people are safeguarded and risk is managed

 Ensuring Value for Money

Robust financial management, within CDYJS and overseen by DCC, is underpinned
by regular budget reports to the Management Board, EHIVC Management Team and
Finance colleagues, DCC.

Budget 2021/22
CDYJS budget is comprised of the following contributions:
Partnership cash funding (DCC, Police, OPCVC, TPS, CCG)
Partnership staff secondments/deployments (Police, TPS, TEWV, H&DFT,
NTHFT, Humankind)
Youth Justice Board (YJB) Grant
Youth Custody Service (YCS) Remand Grant
Specific Grant Funding
Each year the Management Board considers individual contributions and the
budget for the following year is agreed.
16

Page 91

For 2021/22 the total value (staff & cash contribution) of the pooled budget for
CDYJS is: £2,860,870
A detailed budget breakdown can be found at Appendix 3.
The Management Board believe this represents very good value for money and welldeveloped use of its collective pooled resources. Since 2014 the service has
achieved a 63% reduction in first time entrants to the criminal justice system (FTEs);
a 56% reduction in the number of young people offending and a 47% reduction in the
total number of offences committed. In addition, the service has reduced the rate of
reoffending by young people already convicted of previous offending by 11
percentage points since last year.

Youth Justice Grant (2021/22): £672,916
This ring-fenced grant is provided by the YJB to local authorities ‘for the purposes of
the operation of the youth justice system and the provision of youth justice services’
(‘Youth Justice Plans: YJB Practice Note for Youth Offending Service Partnerships’,
YJB, May 2017). The grant may only be used by the Local Authority to fund its
Youth Offending Team with a view to achieving the following outcomes:








 Reduction in youth re-offending

 Reduction in the numbers of first-time entrants to the Youth Justice
System

 Reduction in the use of the youth custody

 Effective public protection

 Effective safegurding

17

Page 92

The YJ Grant is used as part of CDYJS pooled budget (see Appendix 3). This
supports delivery of our Service Improvement Plan 2021/22 which focuses on the
YJB key outcome measures.

Staffing
The Service staffing fully complies with the requirements of the Crime and Disorder
Act 1998, including:
Social Workers
Probation Officer (TPS)
Police Officers
Police staff
Health staff
Education/Employment Advisor.
There is a range of other staff, for example:
Managers
Youth Justice Consultants
Case Managers
Victim Liaison Officers
Family Support Officer
Intensive Supervision and Surveillance (ISS) Officer
Reparation Officer
Administration staff
Intervention Team staff who deliver a range of interventions with young people
to reduce re-offending, including ISS, reparation, and out of court disposals
Management Information Analysts
In addition, we have a dedicated, multi-disciplinary health team, comprising:
0.6fte Speech and Language Therapist
1fte Specialist Public Health Children’s Nurse
2fte Health & Wellbeing Support Worker
2fte Substance Misuse Worker
0.5fte Consultant Clinical Psychologist.
18

Page 93

Service and Staffing Structure
62 staff are employed by Durham County Council on behalf of the partnership and
12fte are seconded from partners (Durham Constabulary, National Probation
Service, North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust (NTHFT), Harrogate and
District NHS Foundation Trust (HDFT), Tees Esk and Wear Valleys Mental Health
Trust (TEWV) and Humankind. See Appendix 5 for CDYJS Staffing Structure.
There are 40 volunteers working with the service to deliver:
Referral Order Panels
Mentoring
Work with Victims
Work with Parents
Independent visiting for children looked after
All staff and volunteers are trained in:
Restorative Approaches/ Restorative Justice
Safeguarding
Speech, language, and communication needs
All staff and managers receive supervision with a line manager each month and an
annual Performance and Development Review. From this, their development and
training needs are identified and are then provided either through DCC staff
development, partner agency staff development or sourced independently. The
needs of the service also feed into the wider service workforce development strategy
2021-23.
All volunteers are assessed annually and have access to the same range of training
courses available to staff.

19

Page 94

The Voice of Young People
Young people play an active role in the work of CDYJS. Their feedback and
involvement have helped to shape the Service Improvement Plan 2021/22, our
response throughout the Covid19 pandemic and the priorities included in this Youth
Justice Plan.
The service has numerous ways of obtaining young people’s views, including:
E-survey for all young people working with CDYJS
Feedback on each intervention undertaken
Ad hoc feedback on specific themes
Manager reviews of cases with young people
Referral Order panel reviews with young people
Every assessment includes a self-assessment by the young person
Re-engagement Panels with young people (for those at risk of breach/noncompliance)
With Youth in Mind – young victims’ consultation and engagement group.
Structured interviews with victims by CDYJS volunteers.
The active participation of young people in their own assessments and intervention
plans is a theme running through all CDYJS quality assurance work and remains a
priority in the Service Improvement Plan for 2021/22.
Through our extensive work to improve our understanding of young people’s
communication needs, we have shaped our approach to ensure that young people’s
experience of CDYJS is as positive as possible and really helps to improve their
outcomes. We have transformed the way we work and developed our own resources
which ensure all young people can contribute to the work we plan and undertake
with them. We now share these resources nationally and share our expertise through
the provision of training throughout the country.

20

Page 95

CDYJS Management Board considers a report, at every
meeting, detailing the collated feedback from young
people and use this to inform their decision making and
the strategic direction of the service.
The service has, once again, achieved the award of
Investor in Children through our work to ensure young
people have a say in their future and we both listen and
respond to their wishes and views. Crucially, we can
evidence that young people’s views have made a difference to the way we practice
and the development of our procedures.

21

Page 96

National Recognition
During 2020/21, CDYJS was awarded a Children & Young People Now Award for
our service to parents of young people who are victims of their child’s behaviour. We
were praised for our innovation and dedication to providing support for parents who,
otherwise, felt they were alone in their experiences. CDYJS allows parents the
opportunity to share their experiences and learn, from each other, how to do things
differently.

In addition, we have once again achieved the award of both Investor in Children and
Investor in Volunteers

22

Page 97

Road Map out of Covid 19 Lockdown
Like all other services, CDYJS produced a revised plan to safely manage the
restrictions of lockdowns. Whilst this proved challenging, we believe that we
managed well and continued to provide a good service to young people, families,
victims, courts, and communities. Our work was regularly reported to the
Management Board which continued to meet virtually each time.
As at June 2021, in-line with Government intentions to move out of lockdown, we are
implementing a roadmap for recovery of our services. We do not intend to return,
fully, to how we used to practice prior to March 2020 as we have learned over the
last year that there are some things that work well delivered in a more ‘remote’
manner.
Examples include:
Some meetings
Some types of interventions
Some young people respond better and find it easier to cope with remote
interventions
A hybrid way of working in respect of staff attendance at their office base
Delivery of some reparation work.
The significance and impact of moving out of lockdown for young people, families
and staff is not under-estimated by the service. Each element of the roadmap out of
lockdown is being managed sensitively, whilst recognising our duty to courts and
their expectations. CDYJS firmly believes that young people and staff achieve better
outcomes when they interact in-person and this will remain our priority form of
intervention with each other.

23

Page 98

Appendix 1

CDYJS Management Board Approval
of Strategic Plan
This plan was approved by CDYJS Management Board members on 21 June 2021.
I approve this plan on behalf of the Board and agree submission to the YJB.
SIGNATURE

Martyn Stenton
Chair of CDYJS Management Board

I welcome this updated plan and as a recently appointed portfolio holder look forward
to having political oversight of this important area of work.
SIGNATURE

Cllr Ted Henderson
Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Children & Young People
Durham County Council

24

Page 99

Appendix 2

Review of Performance against Key
Indicators
First Time Entrants
Between Jan-Dec 2014 and Jan-Dec 2019, we have achieved a 62.8% reduction in
first time entrants to the youth justice system, from a rate of 481 per 100,000 10-17
year olds to 179.

Rate of First Time Entrants to the Youth Justice System
500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
Jan - Dec 14 Jan - Dec 15 Jan - Dec 16 Jan - Dec 17 Jan - Dec 18 Jan - Dec 19
Durham

North East

England

The latest available locally sourced data shows 81 young people entering the Youth Justice System in
2020/21 at a rate of 181 per 100 000 10-17 year olds.

Reducing Re-offending
This measure, provided by the MoJ, provides a rate of reoffending of a cohort of
young people who:
 Receive an out of court disposal (N.B. This does not include the Pre Caution
Disposal)
 Receive a court conviction
 Were discharged from custody.
25

Page 100

The measure counts any offences committed in a 12 month follow up period, where
those offences are proved by a court conviction or out of court disposal in that period
or in a further 6 months. This gives a methodologically robust measure of reoffending.
All data is taken from the Police National Computer (PNC) and is summarised before
distribution to youth offending services/teams.
Ministry of Justice (MoJ) data (Jan – Dec 2018 cohort) shows a re-offending rate of
39.2% which is a 10.6 percentage point reduction compared to the previous year.
This is marginally higher than the National and North East rate of 38.4%.
The rate of reoffending can fluctuate considerable due to the significant decreases,
year to year, in the size of the cohort of young people. The graph below shows the
fluctuating re-offending rates for County Durham since the 2013 cohort, but also
shows that the trend is a reduction in reoffending rates.

26

Page 101

Reducing the Use of Custody
Between 2013 and 2020 we have reduced the rate of custodial sentences from 0.73
to 0.18 per 1,000 10-17 year olds.
The CDYJS rate per 1,000 10-17 population of 0.18 is marginally higher than both
the England and North East average rates of 0.14 and 0.16 respectively. This,
therefore, remains a challenge for the Service to reduce, where appropriate, the use
of custodial sentences. Each time a young person receives a custodial sentence, the
role of CDYJS is reviewed to ensure that we have undertaken all appropriate tasks
to ensure that custody is used as a last resort.

The most recent locally sourced information (April 2020-March 2021) shows 10 custodial sentences
which is an increase of 6 from the previous year.

Remand bed nights (Remands to Youth Detention Accommodation) at 92 nights
saw a 69% decrease on the previous year. Each case has been reviewed and in all
cases the remand to youth detention was considered appropriate due, mostly, to the
seriousness of the offences but also due to the history of the young people. We are
in discussion with colleagues from HM Courts to review processes to ensure the time
spent, by young people, remanded to youth detention is minimised as much as
possible.

27

Page 102

Number of Young People Offending and Offences
Committed
We have achieved a 47.2% reduction in the number of offences committed, from
1118 in 2015/16 to 590 in 2020/21, and an 56.4% reduction in the number of young
people offending, from 576 in 2015/16 to 251 in 2020/21. This includes all offences
committed by young people aged 10-17 years, resulting in a Pre Reprimand
Disposal (PRD) 2008 - 2013 / Pre Caution Disposal (PCD) 2013 onwards, out of
court disposal or a court conviction.

28

Page 103

Appendix 3

County Durham Youth Justice Service
Budget 2021/22
Agency

Staffing
Costs

Local Authority

Payment
in Kind

Other
Delegated
Funds

Total

1,086,781

1,086,781

Police Service

167,560

108,900

276,460

The Probation
Service

33,665

5,000

38,665

Health Provision

281,686

50,267

331,953

OPCVC

208,100

208,100

YJB – Youth
Justice Grant

672,916

672,916

Miscellaneous

245,995

245,995

2,377,959

2,860,80

Total

482,911

Note:


The Youth Justice Grant is used as part of partnership pooled budget to
support delivery of our Service Improvement Plan (see Appendix 4) to support
work to reduce re-offending, first time entrants and use of custody.



At time of producing this plan, the Remand Grant for 2021/22 is unknown.

29

Page 104

Appendix 4

Service Improvement Plan 2021/22
Improving the interventions we complete with young people
Develop a suite of interventions for working with Harmful Sexual Behaviour
and ensure staff are trained in their use
Audit the impact of consultation with young people and service users on our
practice
Audit quality and develop an improvement plan for our response to self-harm
and suicide attempts
Consider how to ensure the resilience of the Skill Mill programme
Enhance Quality Assurance auditing and processes for the Intervention Team
Improve use of YJAF for young people in custody
Implement full planning meetings in all statutory cases
Review and amend our quality assurance processes in light of new ways of
working
Ensure greater integration of the health team into the whole service
Increase the range of reparation activities available for young people
Improve the effectiveness of our work with Durham Works to improve the
outcomes in respect of Education, Training & Employment

Improve the quality of our assessments and plans
Continue to monitor and audit the restorative module of assessment
Improve our planning for exit strategies to ensure tha appropriate support for
young people is in-place once support from the service is removed
Ensure full involvement of young people and families throughout the life of our
intervention
Improve assessment for Harmful Sexual Behaviour (multi-agency)

30

Page 105

Audit and develop improvement plan to ensure proper consideration and
planning for desistance/protective factors
Trail a new assessment for out-of-court disposals which seeks to streamline
the demands of the assessment in-line with the stage of the process
Audit and improve the experience of education for young people in CDYJS
cohort

Target our resources on those young people committing the most
offences
Implement the new Enhanced Case Management Programme with new
Psychologist appointment
Review and continue to enhance the panel process for young people who
persistently offend

Ensure that we listen and respond to what young people and their
families are telling us
Continue to develop and improve the collated report provided to the
Management Board
Audit the impact of feedback from young people and develop improvement
plan if required
Introduce the use of Mind of My Own (MOMO) for CDYJS to make it easier for
young people to engage with us

Continue to improve our work with victims – both adults and young
people
Expand the amount and range of activities on offer for young victims
Undertake overall review of our service to both adult and young victims

Ensuring that volunteering, by both adults and young people, is a
key component of the work we do with young people and victims
Continue to develop the range of roles for volunteers in the Service
Develop the links between the Independent Visitor programme and other
volunteering roles within the service

31

Page 106

Scope the range of volunteering opportunities in the community for CDYJS
cohort.

Ensuring that case management systems and administration
support provides the highest quality support to staff and managers
in the delivery of services to courts, communities, victims, families,
and young people.
Continue to develop the working relationship between the service and
colleagues in administration and management information
Install and implement the new case management database for the Service.

32

Page 107

Page 108

Appendix 5
CDYJS Service Structure 2021

33

Appendix 6

CDYJS Statutory Functions
Provision of:
Case management of Court Orders (Community and Custody) in line with
National Standards for Youth Justice
Out of Court Disposals
Specialist assessment based on criminogenic factors and desistance
Interventions to reduce re-offending
Court staffing (Youth, Crown, Remand Courts including Saturday and Bank
Holiday working)
Bail Supervision functions
Appropriate Adult service for Police interviews (PACE)
Pre Sentence Reports for Courts
Community Volunteers (Referral Order Panels)
Recruit, train, manage, supervise, and deploy volunteers to carry out statutory
functions
Referral Order Panel Reports
‘Prevention’ services to prevent youth crime
Anti-Social Behaviour escalation supervision
Service to victims of youth crime (both young people and adults)
Delivery of court-ordered reparation to community and victims
Delivery of Unpaid Work requirements (16/17 year olds)
Transition services to NPS/CRC
YJMIS data / management info to Youth Justice Board / Ministry of Justice
regarding youth justice cases

34

Page 109

Parenting Orders imposed in the Youth Court (Criminal Matters)
Case management of Sex Offenders (Assessment, Intervention and Moving
On (AIM)) – young people under 18
Remands to Youth Detention Accommodation (RYDA)
Resettlement of young people after custody

Duty to:
Comply with National Standards for Youth Justice
Comply with arrangements for multi-agency public protection (MAPPA)
Comply with relevant legislation
Cooperate with MAPPA/DSCP/SDP (CSP)
Provide and support a Management Board
Produce and deliver an annual Youth Justice Plan
Provide assistance to persons determining whether Youth Cautions or Youth
Conditional Cautions should be given
Cooperate with Children’s Services to improve wellbeing of children and
young people in County Durham

Additional Functions
Provision of Out of Court Disposals (service delivery)
Provision of Think Family / Stronger Families
Manage safeguarding and risk management inherent in all the above
Team Around the Child (TAC) / Team Around the Family (TAF)
Assessment, Planning Interventions, Supervision (APIS)
Offending Behaviour Programmes (OBPs)

35

Page 110

Appendix 7

Glossary
Acronym

Meaning

AIM

Assessment, Intervention and Moving on

APIS

Assessment, Planning, Intervention and Supervision

CAMHS

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service

CCG(s)

Clinical Commissioning Group(s)

CDYOS

County Durham Youth Offending Service

CRC

Community Rehabilitation Company

CSP

Community Safety Partnership

CSPPI

Community Safeguarding and Public Protection Incidents

CYPS

Children & Young Peoples Service

DCC

Durham County Council

DTO

Detention and Training Order

EHIVC

Early Help, Inclusion & Vulnerable Children (part of CYPS)

ESF

European Social Fund

FTE

Full Time Equivalent (staff)

FTEs

First Time Entrants (to the Youth Justice System)

HDFT

Harrogate and District NHS Foundation Trust

HMCTS

Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunals Service

HMIP

Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation

HNA

Health Needs Assessment

HR

Human Resources

IiV

Investing in Volunteers

ISS

Intensive Supervision and Surveillance (alternative to custody)

LAC

Looked After Children
36

Page 111

Acronym

Meaning

LCJB

Local Criminal Justice Board

LSCB

Local Safeguarding Children Board

MAPPA

Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements

MoJ

Ministry of Justice

NECS

North East Commissioning Support (Health)

NPS

National Probation Service

NTHFT

North Tees and Hartlepool NHS Foundation Trust

OBPs

Offending Behaviour Programmes

OOCD

Out of Court Disposal

OPCVC

Office of the Police, Crime and Victims’ Commissioner

PACE

Police and Criminal Evidence Act

PCD

Pre Caution Disposal (April 2013 onwards)

PIO

Practice Improvement Officer

PNC

Police National Computer

PRD

Pre Reprimand Disposal (May 2008 – March 2013)

QA

Quality Assurance

RJ

Restorative Justice

RJC

Restorative Justice Council

RSPCA

Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty To Animals

RSQM

Restorative Service Quality Mark

RYDA

Remands to Youth Detention Accommodation

SDP

Safe Durham Partnership (CSP)

SEND

Special Educational Needs and Disability

SIP

Service Improvement Plan

SLCN

Speech, Language and Communication Needs

SPOC

Single Point of Contact

37

Page 112

Acronym

Meaning

TAC

Team Around the Child

TAF

Team Around the Family

TEWV

Tees, Esk, and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust (Mental
Health)

VCAS

Victim Care Advice Service

VCS

Voluntary and Community Sector

VfM

Value for Money

VLO

Victim Liaison Officer

YJ

Youth Justice

YJB

Youth Justice Board

YJMIS

Youth Justice Management Information System

YJS

Youth Justice Service

YOI

Youth Offender Institution

YOS

Youth Offending Service

YOT

Youth Offending Team

38

Page 113

Appendix 8

Contact Details
YJS Manager - Dave Summers
dave.summers@durham.gov.uk

Chair, Management Board – Martyn Stenton
martyn.stenton@durham.gov.uk

County Durham Youth Justice Service

Durham County Council
Council Offices
Civic Centre
North Terrace
Crook
DL15 9ES

Telephone:
03000 265 999

39

Page 114

County Council

Agenda Item 12

14 July 2021
Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report
2020/21

Report of Corporate Management Team
Paul Darby, Corporate Director of Resources (Interim)

Electoral division(s) affected:
None

Purpose of the Report
1

To present the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020/21 as
required by the Council’s Constitution. The report is attached at
Appendix 2.

Executive summary
2

In accordance with Article 5 paragraph 5.03 (d) of the Council’s
Constitution, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
is required to report annually to the County Council on its work with
recommendations for its future work programme.

Recommendation(s)
3

That County Council receive the annual report for 2020/21, in
accordance with the Council’s Constitution to report annually on
overview and scrutiny activity.

Background
4

Each year the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report is prepared to
provide information on activity by the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board and the five thematic Overview and Scrutiny
Committees. This work programme activity includes in-depth and light
touch review work, and overview activity including monitoring of
performance management and budgetary reporting.

5

This year, due to COVID-19, scrutiny work was paused until remote
meetings were introduced in June 2020. The number of remote scrutiny
meetings then available and the need for shorter agendas resulted in a

Page 115

more prioritised and focused scrutiny function and this is reflected in a
pared down report than in previous years.
6

The Annual Report also includes detail on the statutory scrutiny roles
relating to health and crime and disorder.

7

The Annual Report has been agreed by the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board prior to submission to County Council.

8

It is intended to circulate the report widely.

Background papers


Contact:

Page 116

None

Andy Palmer

Tel: 03000 268551

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
The Council’s Constitution requires the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board to report annually on the work of all the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Finance
None

Consultation
Members of the Council’s Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board considered and commented on the report prior to it being presented to
County Council.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Impact assessments are carried out for all overview and scrutiny reviews.

Climate Change
None

Human Rights
None

Crime and Disorder
None

Staffing
None

Accommodation
None

Risk
None

Procurement
None

Page 117

Appendix 2: Annual report 2020/21 (attached as a separate item)

Page 118

Overview and Scrutiny
Annual Report
2020-2021

Resources
Durham County Council

May 2021

Page 119

Page 120

Page 121

Introduction
The coronavirus pandemic has dominated our lives this year and Durham
County Council has continued to work hard to help and support our residents
and businesses through the emergency.
The challenge for overview and scrutiny in Durham County Council has
always been crucial in ensuring how services are delivered to our
communities. At a time of crisis it has been vital that our priority has been to
constructively support the council and ensure that our services are delivered
efficiently and effectively.
As a result of the pandemic we paused our planned scrutiny work programme
from March 2020 to enable members to concentrate on working to support our
communities. The scrutiny team operated a skeleton service and rescheduled
much of our work. Following the introduction of remote meetings scrutiny
restarted its work programmes in June 2020 with a reduced number of
meetings and shortened agendas.
Durham County Council had already been facing the challenges of continuing
austerity and financial uncertainty. A key priority for the authority will be to
continue to work hard to protect frontline services whilst meeting savings
targets and managing the additional considerable pressures as a result of the
pandemic. Overview and scrutiny will contribute in a constructive way to
support the council in meeting these significant challenges.
This pared down annual report sets out details of the work undertaken by
scrutiny in the past year which has been limited due to the need for the council
and partners to concentrate on the recovery and restoration of services. As
the coronavirus pandemic eases and we continue along the government’s
roadmap from lockdown we will be reviewing our work programmes to identify
areas of the county’s response appropriate for an overview and scrutiny
review.
I would like to thank everyone who has been involved in supporting and
assisting the overview and scrutiny process in this difficult year – members,
officers, partners, co-opted members and the scrutiny team themselves. All
scrutiny committee meetings are open to the public and if you would like to get
involved, the scrutiny team’s contact details are at the end of this report.

Councillor Rob Crute
Chair of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
2020/2021

Page 122

Scrutiny in County Durham
Scrutiny provides a valuable tool to scrutinise how we deliver our services and
to drive improvement. We are supported by a dedicated scrutiny team and
senior and specialist officers across the council which has helped develop a
strong scrutiny culture and adds value to the work of the council.
Durham County Council has embedded the four principles of good scrutiny,
developed by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny, in all our work. These
are:
• To provide a constructive critical friend challenge to executive policymakers and decisions-makers.
• To amplify the voice and concerns of the public.
• To ensure scrutiny is carried out by independent minded people who lead
and own the scrutiny role.
• To drive improvement in public services.
Durham County Council’s overview and scrutiny function involves a
considerable amount of partnership working. Our aim is to ensure that the
good work already taking place contributes to our Transformation
Programme’s key principal of moving partnership working from good to great.
We also promote engagement with local expert and academic researchers in
overview and scrutiny where they can add to our work.
The scrutiny team works with colleagues in communications to identify any
matters within the work programme which may be of particular interest.
Meetings considering items such as the climate emergency and changes to
the delivery of health services have previously provoked a great deal of
interest.
Local Democracy reporters are usually in attendance at most scrutiny
meetings held in person. Their coverage has helped raise the public profile of
scrutiny and for specific issues increased public participation in the scrutiny
process. They have continued to report on our scrutiny meetings throughout
the pandemic.
The majority of detailed in-depth reviews are carried out by the committees,
but smaller working groups may be set up to carry out light touch reviews.
Unfortunately, in 2020/21 no in-depth review work had been undertaken due
to capacity of members, services and our partners.

Page 123

Scrutiny committees decide which areas they wish to examine. This may
arise following representations by members of the public about a particular
matter; be an issue identified by councillors themselves; or follow on from
reports or performance assessment on the council’s activities made by the
cabinet or outside agencies.
We also promote scrutiny by maintaining an excellent relationship between
executive and non-executive members and meet regularly to discuss matters
of common interest.
The overview and scrutiny process provides an opportunity for members of
the public and local communities to comment upon any service

Co-optees and engagement
We continue to work with the non-voting co-optees who sit on our scrutiny
committees. They bring skills, knowledge and their own expertise and views to
scrutiny and provide important external challenge to our work programme.
We have also promoted engagement of local expert and academic
researchers in overview and scrutiny where they can add to our work.
This ownership of the work programme and strong organisational culture
underpins scrutiny’s legitimacy as an effective and strategic function.
Co-opted members appointed to scrutiny committees ensure a strong external
representation and help scrutiny to engage with the public. During the year we
have been able to recruit a new co-opted representative for a vacancy on the
Adults Health and Wellbeing OSC. For the first time the appointment process
involved members interviewing candidates remotely.
We value the different perspectives and challenge our co-optees bring to our
work. Co-optees
• Act as an independent voice for those who live or work in County
Durham.
• Bring specialist knowledge, skills and an element of external challenge
to the overview and scrutiny process.
• Take an interest in, attend and contribute to the committees and
working groups to which appointed.
• Establish good relations with other members, officers and co-optees.
We will be carrying out a full refresh of our co-opted members in 2022 and
anyone who would like to express an interest is requested to contact the
Scrutiny Team.

Page 124

Overview and Scrutiny Committees
Overview and scrutiny is a valuable part of local democracy and has important
statutory roles in the scrutiny of health and crime and disorder. Statutory work
is in addition to roles carried out by our Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board and five thematic scrutiny committees as below:

Safer and
Stronger
Communities
Overview &
Scrutiny
Committee
(SSC OSC)

Adults Health
and Wellbeing
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee
(AWH OSC)

Economy and
Enterprise
Overview &
Scrutiny
Committee
(E&E OSC)

Corporate
Overview &
Scrutiny
Management
Board
(COSMB

Children and
Young People
Overview &
Scrutiny
Committee
(CYP OSC)

Environment
and Sustainable
Communities
Overview &
Scrutiny
Committee
(E&S OSC)

Page 125

Overview and Scrutiny Review
Activity
Each year the scrutiny work programme is developed to ensure a balanced
programme. Alongside considering overview reports and updates, we plan
focussed review work throughout the year. These reviews can be light touch
or in depth and are usually reported to Cabinet and the appropriate thematic
partnership.

GP Service Provision in County Durham – Adults,
Health and Wellbeing OSC
This review examined the extent of GP coverage across County Durham and
identifying the range of services offered by GP practices. It also looked at the
issues and barriers facing patients in accessing their GP including the
availability of branch sites across individual practices
The Adults Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee engaged
in a number of consultation and engagement processes undertaken by GP
practices which involve a range of issues including reductions in practice
branch sites, reductions in pharmacy/dispensing provision and branch
closures. During these processes, the Committee became increasingly
concerned at the issues involving GP recruitment, retention, retirement and
other workforce related pressures that are impacting on the level of service
provision available to residents within County Durham.
There are concerns, nationally, regionally and locally about the falling number
of GPs, the availability of GP appointments, the number of GP practices that
are accepting new patients, the range of services available from GP practices,
and the reduction in the number of GP branch sites.
The Review report was submitted to Cabinet in November 2020 and included
a series of recommendations which aim to improve access to GP services,
enhance the recruitment, retention and training of GPs and health
professionals within General Practice, develop new ways in which patients
can access primary care services including appointments.
Due to the pause in the work programmes this year, the following review will
be completed in 2021/22.

Page 126

Road Safety – Stronger and Safer Communities OSC
Road Safety is an important area to which the Committee has previously undertaken
review activity, held a focussed session on the “fatal four” being the four most
common causes of casualties and fatalities in road traffic accidents (inappropriate
speed, using a mobile phone while driving, not wearing a seatbelt and drink/drug
driving) and young drivers. The Committee has also received annual update reports
on activity of the Durham and Darlington Casualty Reduction Forum and monitored
quarterly performance against road safety performance indicators.
The aim of the Committee’s review was to provide comment on the development of a
new Road Safety Strategy. The Committee has a statutory role to scrutinise work of
the Council and the Safe Durham Partnership and this work would contribute to
actions within the Safe Durham Partnership Plan.
In advance of a draft strategy being produced, Members provided comment following
evidence through two working groups meetings with representatives from the
Council, Durham Constabulary, County Durham & Darlington Fire & Rescue Service
and Council’s Road Safety Manager and a Data Analyst from the North East
Regional Road safety resource. In addition, Members also undertook field study
activity within schools and attended a driving awareness session with apprentices.
Consultation on the draft County Durham and Darlington Road Safety Strategy was
launched in early 2020 and was scheduled to be considered by the Committee in
March 2020, however this meeting was cancelled due to the Coronavirus pandemic.
Within this context, the strategy was circulated to the Committee and a response
was provided in July 2020 to the Cabinet Portfolio Holder and the Service Grouping
that provided comment on the strategy’s strategic vision, approaches undertaken
through education, engineering, enforcement and evaluation, casualty statistics and
delivery plan.
The Committee asked that once the strategy had been agreed by Cabinet and
respective partnership boards that a report on implementation of the strategy and
delivery plan is included within the Committee’s work programme.

Planned Overview and Scrutiny in
2021/22
The work programmes for overview and scrutiny focus on the priority areas
identified within the Council Plan, the Cabinet’s Forward Plan of decisions, the
County Durham Vision 2035, partnership plans and strategies, performance
and budgetary control data and changes in government legislation.
The process for developing the Council’s overview and scrutiny work
programmes is consultative and comprehensive. Initial proposals are
influenced by legislation, plans and strategies, performance reports and
Page 127

include engagement with the executive, partners and officers. Each overview
and scrutiny committee has an experienced chair to ensure there is a clear
focus on the committee’s role and forward plan of work. Where there are any
cross-cutting matters, joint meetings are held to avoid duplication and make
the best use of capacity of both members and officers
Work programmes are usually finalised during June and July and are
designed to ensure there is flexibility and capacity to take on topics which may
arise throughout the year.
A summary of the key issues for the 2021/22 Work Programme is overleaf
COSMB
•
•

Medium Term Financial Plan and budget setting
Transformation
̵ Digital Strategy and Digital Inclusion
̵ Workforce Strategy Delivery
RIPA
Performance and budget outturn
Customer Feedback
Implications of Government Policy Programme
Welfare Reform and Poverty

•
•
•
•
•
Economy
• Support to Business Sector
• DurhamWorks Programme
• Town and Village Centres Programme
• Employability and Skills Development
• Housing Solutions
• Investment Pipeline
• Selective Licensing Scheme
• Transport (regional and local)
• Tourism
• Strategic sites in the county
Children
• Child Poverty
• Erase
• Neglect in County Durham
• Growing Healthy 0-25
• Children and Young People Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing
• Best Start in Life
• Care Leavers Strategy
• Young Carers
• Improving Educational Outcomes
Environment
• Air Quality in County Durham
• Climate Emergency Response Plan
• SUPS monitoring against action plan
• Fly Tipping
• Environmental campaigns
• Fuel Poverty
• Highway, Footway and Bridge Maintenance
• Waste Management
• Flood Risk Management Authorities (flood mitigation in the county)
• Leisure Centre Transformation Programme

Page 128

Safer
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Arson and deliberate fires
Anti-Social Behaviour
Off Road Bikes and Vehicles
Hate Crime
Reducing Re-offending
Alcohol and Drugs Harm Reduction Strategy
Youth Justice Plan
Probation Services
Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence
Road Safety Strategy

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

NHS Statutory Consultations/Legislation plans
COVID-19 Local Outbreak Management Plan
Development of Integrated Care Systems and Partnerships
Health and Social Care Integration
Shotley Bridge Community hospital
Public health funding and services/campaigns
NHS Foundation Trust performance and Oversight –
• County Durham and Darlington NHS FT
• Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS FT
• North East Ambulance Services NHS FT

Adults

Page 129

Constitutional Responsibilities of
Overview and Scrutiny
The constitutional responsibilities of the scrutiny committees are based on the themes
within the council plan.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
•
•
•
•
•
•

To oversee and co-ordinate the work of Overview and Scrutiny and its
committees
To ensure effective liaison across the work of the committees on cross cutting
issues.
To be the strategic driver of the overview and scrutiny function.
To consider as appropriate scrutiny member involvement in regional scrutiny
arrangements within the context of any regional strategies.
The establishment of appropriate liaison with the Executive in the interests of
achieving common aims and continuous improvement for the Council
To encourage appropriate community involvement in the overview and scrutiny
role.

• Consider the Council Plan and Notice of Key Decisions and to monitor
performance against these plans
• Deal with petitions in accordance with the Council’s protocol for petitions
• Consider the council’s annual budget
• Assist the Executive in the development of the council’s annual budget and
to review and scrutinise budgetary management
• Assist the Executive in ensuring the provision of efficient and effective
corporate management and support arrangements
• Assist the Executive in the development of asset management
• Scrutinise delivery of the County Durham Visions 2035 and Council Plan
ambition of an excellent councils and associated objectives of
̵ Our resources will be managed effectively
̵ We will create a workforce for the future
̵ We will design our services with service users
̵ We will use data and technology more effectively
̵ We will actively performance manage our services

Environment and Sustainable Communities OSC scrutinises delivery of the
County Durham Vision 2035 ambitions of More and Better Jobs, People Live Long
and Independent Lives and Connected Communities in relation the environmental
and sustainable communities and Council Plan objectives:
Page 130

• A broader experience for residents and visitors to the County
• Fewer people will be affected by poverty and deprivation within the
County
• A physical environment that will contribute to good health
• Our towns and villages will be vibrant, well used, clean, attractive and
safe
• People will have good access to workplaces, services, retail and leisure
opportunities

Children and Young People OSC scrutinises delivery of the County Durham
Vision 2035 ambitions of More and Better Jobs, People Live Long and Independent
Lives and Connected Communities in relation to children and young people and
Council Plan objectives of:

• Young people will have access good quality education, training and
employment
• Children and young people will enjoy the best start in life, good health
and emotional wellbeing
• Children and young people with special educational needs and
disabilities will achieve the best possible outcomes
• All children and young people will have a safe childhood

Adults, Wellbeing and Health OSC scrutinises delivery of the County Durham
Visions 2035 ambitions of People Live Long and Independent Lives and Council Plan
objectives in relation to adults wellbeing and health of:

• Better integration of health and social care services
• People will be supported to live independently for as long as possible by
delivering more homes to meet the needs of older and disabled people
• Tackling the stigma and discrimination of poor mental health and
building resilient communities.
• Promotion of positive behaviours.
• Review and scrutiny of NHS Services, adult social care, health
inequalities and improvement and Public Health Services

Economy & Enterprise OSC scrutinises delivery of the County Durham Vision
2035 ambitions of More and Better Jobs, and Connected Communities and Council
plan objectives of

• Delivery of a range of employment sites across the county.

Page 131

•
•
•
•
•
•

A strong, competitive economy where County Durham is a premier
place in the North East to do business.
A broader experience for residents and visitors to the county.
People will have good access to workplaces, services, retail and leisure
opportunities.
Helping all people into rewarding work.
Standards will be maintained or improved across County Durham’s
housing stock.
Delivery of new high-quality housing which is accessible and meets the
needs of our residents.

Safer and Stronger Communities OSC scrutinises delivery of the County Durham
Vision 2035 ambitions of People Live Long and Independent Lives and Connected
Communities in relation to safer and stronger communities and Council plan objectives of:

• Promotion of positive behaviours
• Our towns and villages will be vibrant, well used, clean, attractive and
safe
• Communities will come together to accept and support each other

Page 132

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board 2020/21

Cllr Rob Crute
Chair

Cllr Alison Batey
Vice chair

Corporate Overview
and Scrutiny
Management Board
(COSMB) provides a
strategic direction for
the work of all the
overview and scrutiny
committees.

Reports and presentations scrutinised during 2020/21 include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

MTFP (11) 2021/22 2024/25 and Revenue and Capital Budget 2021/22
COVID-19 Planning and Response
Integrated Customer Services Programme
Regulation of Investigative Powers Act (RIPA) 2000
Quarterly Performance Management
Quarterly Budget Outturn reports
Workplace Transformation: Enabling Smarter Working
Poverty Issues
Customer Feedback - Complaints, Compliments & Suggestions
County Durham Partnership
Updates on Petitions
Notice of Key Decisions

Page 133

Adults, Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny
Committee 2020/21

Cllr John Robinson
Chair

Cllr Jean Chaplow
Vice chair

The Adults, Wellbeing
and Health Overview
and Scrutiny
Committee (AWH OSC)
has a statutory role
under the Health and
Social Care Act 2001
as amended to
scrutinise local health
services

Reports and presentations scrutinised during 2020/21 include:
• Overview and Scrutiny Review of Access to GP services in County Durham
• Update on the impact of COVID-19 on Adults and Health Services – Public
Health Response and County Durham Care Partnership System Response
• An Overview of Adult Social Care
• Winter Planning and the work of the Local Accident and Emergency
Delivery Board
• Shotley Bridge Community Hospital updates
• Local Outbreak Management Plan updates
• NHS County Durham Clinical Commissioning Group Primary Care Strategy
• Integrated Care Systems
• Suicide Rates and Mental health and Wellbeing in County Durham - Update
report on progress against Scrutiny review recommendations
• Health Impact Assessments for Health Inequalities during the COVID-19
pandemic
• Tees, Esk and Wear Valleys NHS Foundation Trust Updates on the CQC
Inspection results and also the impact of the COVID 19 pandemic on TEWV
services
• Quarterly Performance Management
• Quarterly Forecast Revenue and Capital Outturn

Page 134

Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committee 2020/21

Children and Young
People Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
(CYP OSC)
Cllr Heather Smith
Chair

Cllr Christine Potts
Vice chair

Reports and presentations scrutinised during 2020/21 include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Impact of COVID-19 on Children and Young People’s Services
Children’s Adolescent Mental Health Service update
Child Poverty in County Durham
Best Start in Life: 0-25 Healthy Child Programme
Neglect in County Durham
Director of Public Health Annual Report 2020
SEND Overview and Focus on SEND in mainstream Schools
Impact of COVID-19 on Education Services
Quarterly Performance Management
Quarterly Forecast Revenue and Capital Outturn
Healthy Weight Alliance
Children’s Commissioning Action Plan
Young Carers
ERASE
Pre Birth Teams
Stronger Families Programme
Free School Meals
Tobacco Dependency in Pregnancy
Signs of Safety Model of Practice
Progress of the Children’s Residential Care Homes Review
Recommendations

Page 135

Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny
Committee 2020/21

Economy and
Enterprise Overview
and Scrutiny Committee
(Economy OSC)
Cllr Malcolm Clarke
Chair

Cllr Richard Manchester

Vice chair

Reports and presentations scrutinised during 2020/21 include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Page 136

COVID-19: Economic Support and Recovery
Impact of COVID-19 on Regeneration, Economy and Growth
Business Durham - Progress
Visit County Durham – Activity and Support Provided during the Pandemic
and Recovery plans
Overview and Scrutiny response to the Minerals and Waste Development
Plan Document and the Parking and Accessibility Supplementary Planning
Document
Housing and Homelessness Strategies
Housing response to COVID-19
Private rented sector
Selective Licensing
Towns and Villages Centres Investment Plan
DurhamWorks Programme – Youth Employment Initiative
EU Funding
Quarterly Performance Management
Quarterly Forecast Revenue and Capital Outturn
Key strategic employment sites in the County
County Durham Plan
Transport activity (regional and local)
Digital Durham Programme (business sector)
Masterplans
North East Skills Advisory Panel
County Durham Economic Partnership
Durham County Council’s Council Housing Delivery Programme

Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview
and Scrutiny Committee 2020/21

Environment and
Sustainable
Communities Overview
and Scrutiny
Committee (Env&Sust
OSC)
Cllr Eddy Adam
Chair

Cllr Olga Milburn

Vice chair

Reports and presentations scrutinised during 2020/21 include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Environmental Campaigns
Fly-tipping
Bereavement Services
Overview of Household Waste Management
Fuel Poverty
Highways, Footway and Bridge Maintenance
Impact of COVID-19 on Neighbourhoods and Climate Change Services
Climate Emergency Response Plan Year 1 update
Quarterly Performance Management
Quarterly Forecast Revenue and Capital Outturn
Community Action Team
Woodland management
Heritage Coast and the Tourism Offer
Environment and Climate Change Partnership
Climate Emergency Response Plan and Carbon Management Plan
EU and Other Funding
DCC Fleet
Leisure Centres Transformation
Sustainable Travel, Walking and Cycling Plan
Stockton to Darlington Railway Bicentennial Celebrations
Gala Theatre
Air Quality Management in County Durham
Heritage Assets
Single Use Plastics
National Fuel Poverty Strategy
Flood Risk Management Authorities

Page 137

Safer & Stronger Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee 2020/21

Cllr David Boyes
Chair

Cllr Heather Liddle

SSC OSC has powers
under the Police &
Justice Act 2006,as
amended, to scrutinise
work being undertaken
by the statutory crime
and disorder reduction
partnership - the Safe
Durham Partnership

Vice chair

Reports and presentations scrutinised during 2019/20 include:
• Overview and Scrutiny Review – County Durham & Darlington Road Safety
Strategy
• Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence
• Safe Durham Partnership Board – Impact of COVID-19
• Community Protection update
• Public Protection Service – Enforcement and Intervention Activity
• County Durham Youth Justice Service Annual Performance report 2019/20
and Service Improvement Plan 2020/21
• County Durham and Darlington Hate Crime Action Group
• Probation Programme ‘Plans for future model’
• Bonfire period and arson
• Open Water Safety
• Off Road Bikes and Vehicles
• Alcohol and Substance Misuse Harm Reduction
• Reducing Re-Offending
• County Durham & Darlington Fire and Rescue Service Community Risk
Management Plan
• Draft Safe Durham Partnership Board

Page 138

Regional Scrutiny
The North East Regional Employers’ Organisation supports a region-wide North
East Joint Scrutiny Member/Officer network where all North East local authority
scrutiny leads discuss national developments in scrutiny. The network also
provides an opportunity to share work programmes and priorities and consider
emerging issues that have an impact across local authority boundaries.
Durham County Council currently chair and administer the regional network. The
network has held two remote meetings during the year and agreed an updated
terms of reference.

North East Combined Authority scrutiny arrangements
We continue to work with other regional authorities as the North East Combined
Authority (NECA) which is comprised of the four councils of Durham, Gateshead,
South Tyneside and Sunderland.
NECA has three broad areas of focus:
• Transport
• Employability and Inclusion
• Economic Development and Regeneration
We have representation on the NECA Overview and Scrutiny Committee to
scrutinise and challenge decision-making on behalf of our communities. The
committee investigates matters of significant importance to residents across the
areas covered by the four councils with a view to influencing decisions.
Durham County Council is represented on the NECA Overview and Scrutiny
Committee by Councillors Rob Crute and Alison Batey, the Chair and Vice-Chair
of COSMB. Councillors Malcolm Clarke and Richard Manchester, the Chair and
Vice-Chair of Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee are the nominated
substitute members.
Transport is of strategic importance to the North East and both NECA and the
North of Tyne Combined Authority (Newcastle, North Tyneside and
Northumberland councils) work collaboratively to ensure effective decision making
takes place across the region. We work with NECA and the North of Tyne
Combined Authority on a North East Joint Transport Committee Overview and
Scrutiny Committee established with representatives from all seven authorities.
Councillors Rob Crute and Alison Batey, the Chair and Vice-Chair of COSMB
represent Durham County Council. Councillors Malcolm Clarke and Richard

Page 139

Manchester, Chair and Vice-Chair of Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee
are the nominated substitute members.
Both scrutiny committees usually meet at varying locations across the NECA area
and meetings are open to the public. During the pandemic meetings have been
held remotely.
Further details on NECA can be found at www.northeastca.gov.uk .

Regional Health Scrutiny
The Council continues to work collaboratively at a regional level to ensure that the
impact of changes to health services across local authority boundaries does not
adversely impact upon residents of County Durham.
The North East Regional Joint Health Scrutiny Committee consists of lead Health
Scrutiny members from all 12 north east local authorities.
The committee is charged with scrutinising issues around the planning, provision
and operation of health services in and across the north east region, comprising
for these purposes the areas covered by all constituent authorities.

Sub Regional Joint Health Scrutiny Committees
The emergence of the North East and North Cumbria Integrated Care System and
associated Integrated Care Partnerships has resulted in the establishment of two
Integrated Care System/Integrated Care Partnerships Joint OSCs within the
region.

North East and North Cumbria ICS and Northern and
Central ICP Joint OSC
This Joint OSC comprises representatives from Durham County Council;
Gateshead BC; Newcastle City Council; North Tyneside BC; Northumberland CC;
South Tyneside BC and Sunderland City Council

North East and North Cumbria ICS and Central and
Southern ICP Joint OSC
This Joint OSC comprises representatives from Darlington BC; Durham County
Council; Hartlepool BC; Middlesbrough BC; Redcar and Cleveland BC; North
Yorkshire County Council and Stockton on Tees BC
Durham County Council is the only North East Council with representatives that sit
on both ICS/ICP Joint OSCs.
The regional and sub-regional joint scrutiny overview and scrutiny arrangements
will be used to scrutinise the development of the ICS/ICPs and any associated
proposals for substantial developments or significant variations in services.

Page 140

Neither Joint OSCs have met during the COVID 19 Pandemic and we are aware
that legislation is currently being progressed through Parliament which would
place Integrated Care Systems on a legal footing and will result on governance
arrangements for them being developed at a regional level. Durham County
Council will continue to engage in this process.

Page 141

Overview and Scrutiny Team
The Overview and Scrutiny team is part of the Resources Directorate.
Andy Palmer, the Head of Strategy and Transformation is designated as the
Statutory Scrutiny Officer.
Tom Gorman is the Corporate Scrutiny and Strategy Manager and Stephen
Gwillym the Principal Overview and Scrutiny Officer.
Diane Close, Jonathan Slee and Ann Whitton are Overview and Scrutiny Officers.
Clare Luery is the Scrutiny Support Assistant.
Scrutiny office:

03000 265978

Email:

scrutiny@durham.gov.uk

Website:

www.durham.gov.uk

Key contacts:
• Adults, Health and Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Stephen Gwillym
Tel: 03000 26814 stephen.gwillym@durham.gov.uk
• Children and Young People Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Ann Whitton
Tel: 03000 268143 ann.whitton@durham.gov.uk
• Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
Clare Luery
Tel: 03000 265978 clare.luery@durham.gov.uk
• Economy and Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Diane Close
Tel: 03000 268141 diane.close@durham.gov.uk
• Environment and Sustainability Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Ann Whitton/Diane Close ann.whitton@durham.gov.uk &
diane.close@durham.gov.uk
• Safer Stronger Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Jonathan Slee Tel: 03000 268142 jonathan.slee@durham.gov.uk

Page 142

County Council

Agenda Item 13

14 July 2021
Annual Report of the Standards
Committee 2020/21

Report of Helen Lynch, Head of Legal and Democratic Services and
Monitoring Officer
Electoral division(s) affected:
None

Purpose of the Report
1

To provide an overview of the work of the Standards Committee during
2020/21 and to set out the future direction which the Committee intends
to take during 2021/22.

Executive summary
2

The Standards Committee has continued to promote the principles and
values of good governance within the Council and across the County.
The Members of the Standards Committee are committed and dedicated
to ensuring that high standards of conduct are maintained by all local
elected Members.

3

This report sets out the progress made by the Standards Committee in
2020/21 in respect of code of conduct issues for the elected Members
within County Durham.

4

This report also sets out the training provided to Members as well as the
work programme of the Standards Committee to achieve the objective of
promoting and maintaining high standards.

Recommendations
5

It is recommended that Council note the report.

Page 143

Background
6

Although there is no legislative requirement for Standards Committees to
produce an Annual Report, doing so is recognised as good practice. Not
only does the report publicise the work of the Committee to the general
public, it is also a means for the Authority itself to monitor the
Committee’s work.

7

References to Articles in the Council’s Constitution in this report are to
those that existed during 2020 - 2021.

Membership of the Standards Committee 2020/21
8

The Standards Committee is comprised of 11 County Council Members
and 2 Parish/Town Council Members as follows:
County Council Membership
Councillor B Kellett - Chairman
Councillor E Huntington - Vice Chairman
County Councillors - J Atkinson, A Bainbridge, E Bell, J Bell, J Clark,
M Clarke, J Nicholson, A Savory and D Stoker.
Parish and Town Council Representatives
Councillor Terry Batson is a consultant Arborist and a former Local
Government Officer. Councillor Batson is also a Member of Tow Law
Town Council.
Councillor Ralph Harrison is a former Member of Chester le Street
District Council who continues to serve his local community as a Member
of Sacriston Parish Council.

Independent Persons
9

Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council was required to appoint one or
more Independent Persons to assist in the Standards process.

10

The functions of the Independent Persons are:
a. They must be consulted by the Authority before it makes a finding
as to whether a Member has failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct or decide on action to be taken in respect of that
Member.

Page 144

b. They may be consulted by the Authority in respect of a Standards
complaint at any other stage and they may be consulted by a
Member or a co-opted member.
11

In September 2012 the Council appointed the following persons:
a. John Dixon Dawson. John is from Peterlee and is currently Head
of Post Graduate Programmes at the University of Sunderland
Business School. He has a career going back to 1986, which has
involved various placements at universities in the North East, four
years as a non-Executive Director at an NHS Trust and seven
years as a Deputy Town Clerk.
b. Peter William Jackson. Peter is from Newton Hall and is retired.
He was originally from the private sector having fulfilled the roles
of Factory Manager, General Manager, Managing Director, Group
Technical Executive and Sales Manager. He has also served on
the Youth Employment Committee of the Council and the Police
Consultative Committee for Durham County Council.

12

The Independent Persons were appointed for a four-year term with effect
from 25 September 2016 and this is their second term of office.

Role of the Standards Committee
13

The Members of the Standards Committee have a common interest in
that they believe in principled local politics and value their role as
champions of high standards of conduct amongst local politicians. The
Terms of Reference for the Committee are set out in the Council’s
Constitution as follows:
a) promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct by Members
and Co-opted Members of the Council and Parish and Town Council
Members;
b) assisting Members and Co-opted Members of the Council and Parish
and Town Council Members to observe the Members’ Code of
Conduct and where appropriate, the Planning Code of Practice;
c) advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code
of Conduct and the Planning Code of Practice;
d) monitoring the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct and the
Planning Code of Practice;

Page 145

e) advising, training or arranging to train Members and Co-opted
Members of the Council and Parish and Town Council Members on
matters relating to the Members’ Code of Conduct and Planning Code
of Practice;
f) granting dispensations to Members and Co-opted Members of the
Council from requirements relating to interests set out in the Members’
Code of Conduct and Planning Code of Practice in circumstances
where this function has not been delegated to the Monitoring Officer;
g) the assessment and/or referral for investigation of allegations of
misconduct on the part of Members and Co-opted Members of the
Council and Parish and Town Council Members, if requested to
undertake this function by the Monitoring Officer;
h) the determination of allegations of misconduct on the part of Members
and Co-opted Members of the Council and Parish and Town Council
Members;
i) dealing with any alleged breach by a Member of a Council Protocol, in
accordance with procedures approved by the Committee;
j) overview of the Officers’ Code of Conduct;
k) overview of the Protocol on Member/Officer Relations.
14

Each year the Standards Committee agrees a work programme, which
reflects the Terms of Reference set out above.

Code of Conduct Complaints
15

In 2012, following the implementation of the Localism Act 2011 and
associated changes to the Standards regime, the Monitoring Officer was
appointed as the ‘Proper Officer’ to receive complaints of failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring Officer has delegated
power, after consultation with the Independent Person, if appropriate, to
determine whether a complaint merits formal investigation. Wherever
practicable, the Monitoring Officer seeks resolution of complaints without
formal investigation and she has discretion to refer decisions to a
Standards Hearing where she feels that it is inappropriate for her to make
the decision. The Standards Committee receives a quarterly report on the
discharge of this function.

16

During 2020/21 the number and breakdown of complaints regarding
breaches of the Code of Conduct was as follows:

Page 146

Year

Total no. of
complaints
received
Source of
Complaints

Complaints
against
(including
withdrawn and
rejected)

1 April 2019 to 31
March 2020

1 April 2020 to 31
March 2021

49

48

Councillors
13

Councillors
22

Members of the public
33

Members of the public
21

Parish/Town Council
employee
2

Parish/Town Council
employee
0

Anonymous
1
County Councillors
15

Anonymous
0
County Councillors
15

Parish Councillors
18

Parish Councillors
13

Town Councillors
16

Town Councillors
36

Dual-hatted
0
Independent
The Independent Person
Persons Involved was consulted in respect
of 8 complaints.

Dual-hatted
0
The Independent Person
was consulted in 8
complaints.

The Independent Person
also attended the
Standards Hearing
Panel on 17 September
2019.
No Further Action
32

The Independent Person
also attended the
Standards Hearing
Panel on 14 December
2020.
No Further Action
19

Local Resolution
8

Local Resolution
16

Investigation (relating to
multiple complaints)

Investigation
5

Outcomes

Page 147

1

17

Standards Committee
Hearing Panel (relating
to multiple complaints)
1

Standards Committee
Hearing Panel
1

Withdrawn/Rejected
13

Withdrawn/Rejected
4

In 2020/21 the number of complaints remain consistent with the previous
years. There was an increase in the number of complaints where local
resolution was recommended and equally the same increase was
observed in the number of complaints referred for investigation. For
future reporting the themes for the complaints will be recorded so that
emerging trends can be considered.

Work of the Standards Committee during 2020/21
18

During the year there was disruption to the normal meeting schedule due
to covid-19 restrictions. The Committee met on two occasions. The
Committee received updates on the current status of complaints and of
the ‘national picture’ on Standards issues affecting Local Government.

19

An informal meeting of the standards committee took place on 21 July
2020 for members of the Committee and the Independent Persons to
comment on the Local Government Association model code of conduct
consultation.

20

During the year, the Committee also considered the recruitment process
for the Independent Persons which was agreed by full Council on 20
January 2021. The recruitment process took place between February
2021 and April 2021 and the recruitment Panel were made up of the
Monitoring Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officer and Chair of the Standards
Committee. The Committee will be asked to make recommendations to
Council as to who should be appointed at its meeting in July 2021.

21

As part of the work programme the Committee also considered the Local
Government Association Model Code of Conduct, which was published in
December 2020 following the recommendations from the Committee for
Standards in Public Life (CSPL). The Committee noted that the Council’s
Member Code of Conduct already largely reflected the best practice
identified by the CSPL. The Committee therefore recommended to

Page 148

Council that the Code be amended to fully reflect the best practice rather
than adopt an entirely new Code.
22

The Standards Committee also recommended updates to the Member
Code of Conduct on ‘other relevant interests’ which would allow Members
with such an interest to speak but not vote on the relevant item of
business to full Council for approval. These amendments to the Code of
Conduct were was approved by full Council on 24 March 2021.

Future work plan
23

The Standards Committee will continue to monitor the progress by the
Government in the response to the report on Ethical Standards in Public
Life published by the Committee for Standards in Public Life and monitor
any changes in legislation arising from this.

24

The Standards Committee have also agreed work programme for
2021/22 shown at Appendix 3. The work programme includes standing
agenda items on the national picture and an update on code of conduct
complaints. In addition, it is proposed that the Standards Committee will
review the arrangements for, co-opted membership of Town and Parish
Councillors to the standards committee and the Local Assessment of
Complaints procedure.

Background Papers
 None

Further Information
 None

Contact: Kamila Coulson-Patel

Tel: 03000 269674

Page 149

Appendix 1: Implications
Legal Implications
The Council has a duty under section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote
and maintain high standards of conduct by its members and to adopt a code
of conduct that is consistent with the Nolan Principles and to have in place
arrangements under which allegations can be investigated and decisions
made. The publication of an Annual Report aids the public understanding and
awareness of the committee’s work and demonstrates how the Council
discharges its section 27 duty.

Finance
There are no financial implications arising out of the report.

Consultation
There are no consultation implications arising out of the report.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
There are no equality and diversity implications arising out of the report.

Climate Change
There are no climate change implications arising out of the report.

Human Rights
There are no Human Rights implications arising out of the report.

Crime and Disorder
There are no Crime and Disorder implications arising out of the report.

Staffing
There are no staffing implications.

Accommodation
There are no accommodation implications.

Risk
There are no risk implications arising out of the report.

Procurement
There are no procurement implications.

Page 150

Appendix 2: Work Programme 2020/21

Meeting
4 June 2020

4 September
2020

9 December
2020

3 March
2021

Item
1. Review of national standards
picture.

Date Considered
Deferred due to
cancellation

2. Complaints update.

Deferred due to
cancellation

3. Appoint of Independent
Persons.

9 December 2020

4. Review of Member Guidance
on the use of Social Media.

Not considered in
2020/21

1. Review of national standards
picture.

Deferred due to
cancellation

2. Complaints update.

Deferred due to
cancellation

3. Annual Report 2019/2020.

9 December 2020

1. A Review of national
standards picture.

9 December 2020

2. Complaints update.

9 December 2020

1. Review of national standards
picture.

3 March 2021

2. Complaints update.

3 March 2021

3. Work programme review.

3 March 2021

4. LGA Model Code of Conduct.

3 March 2021

Page 151

Appendix 3: Work Programme 2021/22

Summer 2021

 Confirmation of appointment of Independent
Persons.
 Annual Report 2021/22
 Work Programme 201/22
 Review of national standards picture.
 Complaints update.

Autumn 2021

 Review of national standards picture.
 Complaints update.
 Review of Code of Conduct complaints procedure.
 Co-opted membership on the Standards
Committee.

Winter 2021

 Review of national standards picture.
 Complaints update.
 Evaluation of Member Training and Development.

Spring 2022

 Review of national standards picture.
 Complaints update.
 Social Media Guidance review.
 Review of Work Programme 2021/22.
 Work Programme 2022/23.

Page 152

